
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

Annual
Council
Date: THURSDAY, 20 MAY 2021

Time: 7.30 PM

Venue: COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting 

To all 
Members of 
the Council

Published: Wednesday, 12 May 2021

View the agenda online at 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

Alternatively, use a smart phone camera 
and scan the code shown below:

Contact:  Lloyd White, Head of 
Democratic Services
Tel: 01895 556743
Email: lwhite@hillingdon.gov.uk

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


Useful information for 
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meeting

You can watch this meeting on the Council's 
YouTube channel, live or archived.

Residents and the media are also welcome to 
attend in person, and if they wish, report on the 
public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as 
long as it does not disrupt proceedings. 

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. When present in the room, silent mode should be 
enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with the 
Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 

Please enter via main reception and visit the 
security desk to sign-in and collect a visitors pass. 
You will then be directed to the Chamber.

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use. 

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest 
To note any declarations of interest in any matter before the Council

3 Election of Mayor 2021/2022 
To elect a Mayor of the London Borough of Hillingdon to hold office from 20 May 
2021 until his or her successor becomes entitled to act as Mayor.

i) The retiring Mayor, Councillor Barnes, to provide a summary of her year 
in office.

ii) Nominations for Mayor invited by the retiring Mayor – election (if 
necessary).

iii) Retiring Mayor declares the result.

ADJOURNMENT FOR THE ROBING OF THE NEW MAYOR
4 Acceptance of Office by the Mayor 

i) The newly elected Mayor to make and sign the declaration of 
acceptance of office.

ii) The Head of Democratic Services to declare the election of the Mayor 
to be complete.

5 Appointment of Deputy Mayor 
To receive the Mayor’s appointment in writing of a Councillor of the 
Borough to be Deputy Mayor for the coming year.

6 New Mayor's Announcements 
To receive announcements from the new Mayor including the appointment 
of the Mayoress.

7 Vote of Thanks to Outgoing Mayor 
i) Vote of thanks to the outgoing Mayor to be moved and seconded - vote.
ii) Presentation of Past Mayors’, Past Mayoress’ and Past Mayor’s Escorts 

badges for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

8 Report of the Head of Democratic Services 1 - 64



9 Committee Allocations and Membership 2021/2022 65 - 70
To determine the number and size of Council committees and allocate 
Members to serve on those committees based on the political balance on 
the Council, where required.

10 Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees' Annual Report 71 - 100
To receive the annual report

11 Statement By The Leader of the Council 
In accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, to receive, without 
comment, a statement by the Leader of the Council.

On the rising of the Annual Meeting of the Council, the Head of Democratic 
Services will convene special meetings of the Committees for the purpose 
of appointing Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen and sub-committees where 
appropriate.



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

i) APPOINTMENT OF CABINET

Members are asked to note the appointment by the Leader of the Council of the 
Deputy Leader and Cabinet for 2021/2022 onwards as follows:

Position/Portfolio Councillor
Deputy Leader and Property & Infrastructure Councillor Jonathan Bianco
Finance Councillor Martin Goddard
Environment, Housing & Regeneration Councillor Eddie Lavery
Corporate Services & Transformation Councillor Douglas Mills
Families, Education & Wellbeing Councillor Susan O’Brien
Health & Social Care Councillor Jane Palmer
Public Safety & Transport Councillor John Riley

ii) RESULT OF BY-ELECTION

Members are asked to note the results of the Charville by-election held on 6 May 
2021 where Darran Davies of the Conservative Party was elected a new borough 
councillor as follows:

Candidate Votes

John Bowman (Green Party) 164

Alexander Cunliffe (Liberal Democrats) 107

Darran Davies (Conservative Party) 2098

Steve Garelick (Labour and Co-operative Party) 1799

Tiffany Ritter (Independent) 61

Councillor Davies has declared himself to be a member of the Hillingdon 
Conservative Group and, therefore there is no change to the overall political 
balance of the Council as a result of the by-election.

Background Papers: None

iii) REVIEW OF COUNCIL CONSTITUTION (#1)

SUMMARY

1. The Constitution of the London Borough of Hillingdon sets out how the Council 
operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to 
ensure that these are efficient, transparent, and accountable to residents. Many 
of these processes are required by law, while others are a matter for the 
Council to choose. The Constitution contains various sections, including 
Articles, Delegations, Rules of Procedure and Codes which set out the basic 
rules governing the Council’s business.

Page 1

Agenda Item 8



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

2. The Constitution is reviewed on a regular basis to keep it up to date with 
legislative changes, best practice and to continue to meet the needs of the 
political interface, which is integral to the effective running of the Council.

3. This review seeks to strengthen the accountability of the executive in respect of 
overview and scrutiny arrangements. It builds upon Hillingdon’s responsive 
approach to decision-making by taking a fresh look at the level of delegations to 
officers, whilst maintaining strong Member oversight. It also updates the new 
management structure, reporting to the Chief Executive.

4. The Leader of the Council has proposed the following changes (A-I) to the 
Constitution which are set out below in relation to the relevant section of the 
Constitution along with detailed changes shown in Appendix 1 to this report 
shown as:
 new text red bold underlined
 deleted text red bold struck through

5. Consequential changes will be required to other parts of the Constitution to 
reflect new committee titles along with other minor changes to give effect to 
these proposals.

RECOMMENDATION: That the proposed amendments to the Constitution, as 
detailed below and set out in Appendix 1 be approved.

A. Part 1 – Introduction, Article 6 – Policy Overview, Scrutiny & Select 
Committees & Part 4 E – Policy Overview, Scrutiny & Select Committee 
Procedure Rules.

6. The last review of the Council’s overview and scrutiny arrangements was 
undertaken in 2019 following the release of the updated national Statutory 
Scrutiny Guidance. It is proposed to further strengthen such arrangements by 
aligning executive responsibilities and service areas with relevant overview and 
scrutiny committees whilst also expanding the scope for any potential use of the 
statutory scrutiny ‘call-in’ power to all relevant committees. Combined, these 
steps will strengthen the accountability of the Cabinet and Cabinet Members to 
these committees, along with the decisions they take either collectively or 
individually.

There are main 3 changes, which are set out in more detail in Appendix 1:

i) Change of title. 

The first is to re-name all overview and scrutiny committees as “select 
committees” to reflect their broader responsibilities outlined below, whilst also 
raising their profile and for greater public and organisational understanding of 
their role. 

ii) Change to the call-in power. 

It is proposed to abolish the Executive Scrutiny Committee and transfer the 
statutory “call-in” powers to the relevant select committee whose remit covers the 
executive decision made. This would not include the External Services Select 
Committee which has an external mandate.

Page 2



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

For any call-in to be valid and proceed forward, it is proposed that a majority of 
the relevant select committee’s membership be required to request this. As most 
committees would not necessarily meet directly after a Cabinet meeting where it 
could potentially consider a call-in at the meeting, this procedure would therefore 
be executed on the onus of individual members of the relevant committee 
outside meetings. This would be through the use of an on-line form which would 
need to be submitted with sufficient signatories to constitute a majority of the 
relevant select committee and be received before the end of the standard, 5 
working day call-in period for that decision.

A ‘call-in’ can be exercised on Cabinet decisions, Cabinet Member decisions or 
key decisions taken by officers. Decision notices will be updated to reflect the 
relevant select committee that could potentially call-in a decision (as it currently 
shows on the related report). Should it be unclear which is the relevant select 
committee, the Head of Democratic Services will make that determination.

No other changes are proposed to the call-in procedure thereafter and for any 
urgency decisions which seek to waive this procedure, this would revert to the 
chairman of the relevant select committee for permission.

The benefit of the call-in power being placed across select committees, should it 
be exercised, is that the executive decision made will be scrutinised by Members 
with a dedicated interest and insight into the matter, thereby strengthening 
scrutiny’s effectiveness.

iii) Structure and Terms of Reference. 

To strengthen the accountability of the executive to select committees, it is 
proposed that the terms of reference of the committees align and mirror the 
recently updated Cabinet Member portfolios and also Directorate service areas, 
including any Cabinet Member cross-cutting responsibilities. The Directorate 
service area titles shown in the Terms of Reference of the committees cover the 
full range of council service responsibilities and Democratic Services can advise 
on specific responsibilities within these service areas for any planned overview 
and scrutiny activity.

Therefore, it is proposed to create four select committees covering services 
within the Council’s remit, whilst retaining the External Services Select 
Committee with its existing external mandate. This structure continues the 
important role of the Corporate Parenting Panel and the ability for single task and 
finish review or select panels to be formed as at present, should they be 
required. The proposed new structure is set out below and in more detail in the 
Appendix.

Page 3



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Some additional minor and inconsequential changes have been made to better 
clarify wording around how the committee’s work, as set out in Appendix 1.

Should the new structure be approved, implementation will take place following full 
Council where Democratic Services will work with the committee chairmen to re-
align work programmes accordingly. In terms of major reviews, there is one live 
review on Adult Education nearing completion and whilst it would finish under the 
new structure, the final report will need to fully reflect the work of the current 
Residents, Education & Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee and its 
members. All other major reviews have either been completed or are at the initial 
scoping / ideas stage so this change in structure should have minimal impact.

B. Article 4 – The Full Council

7. This Article sets out the role and decisions taken by full Council. It includes a 
list of policy and budget framework documents or key plans which require full 
Council adoption. There has been limited Government guidance over the years 
on the make-up of this list since new Constitutions were first formed in 2002. 
However, as time has transpired, certain plans are now obsolete, not statutorily 
required, need to be updated or have been superseded by different 
documentation or reporting arrangements. Following a review with relevant 
service officers an updated list is recommended for approval as shown in 
Appendix 1. The changes are:

(i) Removal of the Community Strategy, Best Value Performance Plan where 
there is no longer a statutory requirement and the Children’s & Families 
Trust Plan where children’s trust arrangements are no longer in place.

(ii) Removal of the Community Care Plan, where such activities are 
incorporated into the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy.

(iii) Removal of the Education and Early Years Development Plans which 
officers advise statutorily are now obsolete. 

Page 4



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

(iv) An update to planning documentation terminology, which are now called 
“Development Plan Documents” and removal of the Statement of 
Community Involvement which is no longer part of the Development Plan.

(v) Removal of the Borough Transport Strategy given use of the Local 
Implementation Plan instead under Transport for London’s arrangements 
and that transportation is also included in key planning documents.

(vi) Youth Justice Plan, indicating it as “if required”. More recent Home Office 
guidance requires, as a minimum, agreement of an annual Plan from the 
local Youth Justice Board and its Chairman (for Hillingdon, the Corporate 
Director of Social Care & Health) which is then reported to the Youth 
Justice Board for England and Wales.

C. Article 7 – Cabinet Scheme of Delegations

8. These arrangements can be agreed by the Leader of the Council at any time. 
However, Council is asked to note that since the last changes to Cabinet 
portfolios in January 2021, the Leader has agreed to transfer responsibility for 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) from the Cabinet Member for 
Families, Education & Wellbeing to the Cabinet Member for Health & Social 
Care. This change aligns the service better with portfolios and departmental 
responsibilities. This minor change is not shown in Appendix 1.

D. Article 8 - 8.05 – Appointments Committee and Part F – Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules

9. Minor changes are proposed to these two parts of the Constitution to reflect that 
the Chief Officers comprising the Corporate Management Team are now all 
termed ‘Corporate Directors’ reporting to the Chief Executive. Other Director / 
Head of Service level appointments (who report to a Corporate Director) will 
continue to be made via a smaller Appointments Sub-Committee in the usual 
way.

E. Article 8 - 8.06 – Pensions Committee / Part 3 Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers

10. The Pensions Committee have agreed to recommend changes to its own Terms 
of Reference to provide for an informal Pensions Sub-Group comprising 
Members to flexibly review and monitor business whilst also clarifying the roles 
and responsibilities of the Committee and officers with regard to making 
decisions. Changes also reflect the broader role of the Committee overseeing 
pensions matters in a new all-embracing Terms of Reference No.1 which 
negates the need for No.10 and No.12. 

11. Following a discussion at the Committee, external advice received and a 
recommendation from the Chairman, it is also proposed to remove the Terms of 
Reference No.13 relating to the employer side responsibilities to avoid any 
conflict of role. Members should note that it is the Committee’s role is to exercise 
functions in relation to the Council’s role as administering authority for the 
pension fund, as opposed to the Council’s role as an employer. This will, 
therefore, require a change to the Chief Executive’s delegations in Part 3 
Scheme of Delegation to officers, to enable the delegation to be transferred to 
her to approve proposals for discretionary enhanced early retirement packages 

Page 5



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

for officers but subject to written agreement from a majority of the Appointments 
Committee. All changes are shown in Appendix 1.

F. Article 8 - 8.09 - Health and Wellbeing Board

12. No changes are being proposed at this time to the Board, but Members may 
wish to note that a review of the work of the Board is being undertaken and may 
result in constitutional changes required to its Terms of Reference at a later date 
by full Council.

G. Article 11 – Officers, Part 3 – Scheme of Delegations to Officers and Part 7 
– Management Structure

13. Article 11 outlines the key officers of the Council and their responsibilities in 
summary. This now reflects the new management structure and Corporate 
Directors’ service area responsibilities. This is shown in Appendix 1.

14. Part 3 – Officer Scheme of Delegations sets out the delegations afforded to the 
Chief Executive and Corporate Directors. A slimmed down top-level officer 
scheme of delegations is shown in Appendix 1 which primarily incorporate a lift 
and shift of delegations following the retirement of the former Deputy Chief 
Executive and Corporate Director of Residents Services. Where delegations 
were previously shown in Part 3, these have been transferred to Internal 
Schemes of Delegations.

15. The only new delegation proposed to be added in Part 3 is to the Chief Executive 
and relates to the PREVENT counter-terrorism agenda, following guidance from 
the Home Office that this is included in Council Constitutions. The Chief 
Executive currently oversees such activity with relevant officers.

16. As referenced above, the Internal Schemes of Delegations set out the detailed 
powers delegated to each Corporate Director. These are primarily non-executive 
and regulatory in nature, which they may then sub-delegate to other officers to 
make decisions on. For ease of updating, it is proposed that these Schemes are 
combined to become an integral annex to the Council’s Constitution, rather than 
continue as separate documents under each Directorate which has previously 
been the case. 

17. It is also recommended that officers undertake a refresh of all these delegations 
alongside all relevant legislation, so they are as up to date as possible. This will 
be presented to Council in July for approval. In the meantime, Corporate 
Directors can continue to exercise the relevant delegations they need and sub-
delegate to officers as required.

18. Part 7 of the Constitution sets out the updated officer management structure in 
diagram form and is attached in Appendix 1.

H. Part 4 (Schedule A) Council Procedure Rules, Part 4 (Schedule B) 
Committee Standing Orders and Part 4 (Schedule C) Executive Procedure 
Rules

19. These Standing Orders in the Constitution sets out how full Council meetings 
and committee meetings operate. As with all local authorities, such Standing 

Page 6



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Orders never included any provision for amending meeting procedures during a 
national pandemic, where remote/virtual meetings were also permitted in law.

20. To future-proof the Council’s Constitution if required again in the future, and 
where permitted by the law, it is proposed to add an additional Standing Order to 
this effect.

21. This would be a new SO.27 in the Council Procedure Rules, a new SO.19 in the 
Committee Standing Orders (moving the Health and Wellbeing Board to SO. 20) 
and an amendment to SO 1.5 in the Executive Procedure Rules.

I. Part 4 Schedule H – Procurement and Contract Standing Orders

22. Officers, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance, have undertaken 
a review of the Procurement & Contract Standing Orders and some changes are 
proposed to make the procurement process more efficient, without losing the 
rigour of a robust process. These are set out in Appendix 1 in full and explained 
below in relation to the relevant Standing Order:

i) Standing Order 4.1 (a) – changes to value thresholds and award criteria

The change of value thresholds proposed reflects the relatively low value of 
the requirements being tendered and efficiency benefits of the slightly more 
informal nature of quotation process versus tender process. Officers advise 
that the widening of thresholds will not reduce value-for-money that officers 
are able to achieve on behalf of the Council.   

The change in Award Criteria provides an opportunity to evaluate quality at 
all levels of spend. Some suppliers will try to ‘buy’ work by submitting very 
low-cost quotations or tenders and this is frequently accompanied by a 
poor-quality outcome. It should be noted, however, that the use of the term 
‘most economically advantageous’ does not preclude use of ‘lowest price’ 
where it is felt that is most appropriate.

ii) Standing Order 4.1 (b) - weighting

The change and additional wording proposed to weighting is to better 
manage the risk the Council incurs when it is required to tender with a 
heavy pricing bias. Experience has demonstrated that suppliers often 
refuse to engage when there is a low-quality weighting. Suppliers often try 
to buy work with low ball bids to the longer-term detriment of quality 
outcomes in terms of professional advice, building works or products. The 
tiered approach offers more flexibility across the varied goods, works and 
services that the Council procures. 

iii) Standing Order 5.5 (d & e) – late tenders

This minor change to the receipt of late tenders clarifies that permission 
from the Borough Solicitor is required rather than a Cabinet Member, as it 
relates to the legal nature of the decision required.  

Page 7



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

iv) Standing Order 6.2 and 6.3 – tender approval thresholds

Taken as a whole, the changes to the tender acceptance thresholds are 
intended to drive further efficiency in the approval process, reducing the 
resource required to complete the report writing and other internal 
processes. With the exception of the £0 - £24,999 expenditure range, 
Cabinet Members will retain full oversight and authorisation of all such 
decisions. Changes to wording also provide the option for the Leader of the 
Council to delegate tender related decisions to the relevant Cabinet 
Member and/or Cabinet Member for Finance who leads on procurement 
matters. There is no change proposed for the high value tenders above 
£500,000 which are still required to come to Cabinet for approval.

v) Standing Order 6.4 – agency workers and consultants

These changes make permanent a temporary Cabinet decision in March 
2021 to provide for streamlined delegated authority to Officers to approve 
consultancy and agency assignments within establishment and budget. 
Outside this, with sign-off by the Leader also. This also continues the 
regular reporting to Cabinet to note agency and consultancy assignments 
over £50k for transparency.

The inclusion of the additional reference to small versus larger consultancy 
practices is intended to draw a distinction between those that may fall within 
the realms of IR35 Intermediaries Legislation (relating to tax avoidance) 
and the potential risk to the Council.  

vi) Standing Order 7.1 and 9.2  

Standing Orders currently capture requirements below £1000 and above 
£10,000 but not in-between. This is a minor correction to ensure that 
Standing Orders take into account all orders between £1000 and £9,999. 
The change proposes that Purchase Orders (with accompanying terms and 
conditions) be deemed suitable for low value procurements.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising directly out of this report. 

Legal Implications

This is a wide-ranging review of the Constitution, covering a number of important 
areas, and therefore it is of the utmost importance that the proposed changes 
comply with all primary and secondary legislation, government guidance and good 
practice. The Borough Solicitor, having carefully reviewed this part of the report, 
can confirm that there are no legal reasons preventing Members from approving the 
changes.

Background Papers: None

Page 8



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

iv) REVIEW OF COUNCIL CONSTITUTION (#2) PLANNING COMMITTEE TERMS 
OF REFERENCE AND SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS TO OFFICERS

Background

1. Members are asked to consider a proposal to rationalise the current Planning 
Committee arrangements and to streamline the Scheme of Delegations.

2. It is proposed to establish two planning committees - a ‘Minor Applications’ 
committee and a ‘Major Applications’ committee and to remove the current 
area-based committees and HS2 Sub Committee. Each committee to consist 
of 7 Members, politically balanced.

3. It is also proposed that officers be enabled to authorise planning enforcement 
notices and deeds of variation to legal agreements and the Scheme of 
Delegations is to be updated so that the Committees focus on those 
applications with the most public interest.

4. Appendix 2 sets out the proposed changes to the terms of reference and 
officer delegations (with changes shown as):
 New text red bold underlined
 Deleted text red bold struck through

RECOMMENDATIONS: That the updated Planning Committee arrangements 
and Terms of Reference detailed in the report be approved and the revised 
Scheme of Delegations to Officers for the Corporate Director of Planning, 
Environment, Education and Community Services relating to planning 
matters, as shown in Appendix 2, be approved.

Information

5. The Planning Advisory Service describe Planning Committees as follows: 
‘Planning committee is a significant investment of time and resources for most 
councils, and requires the close coordination of planning, democratic services 
and legal teams. It is an important shop window for the council and plays a 
crucial role in providing democratic and transparent decisions on sometimes 
controversial issues. Running a good planning committee is a challenge, and 
the best committees periodically review how they operate to ensure that it acts 
as an excellent 'shop window' for the council.’

6. Officers have recently reviewed the effectiveness of the Councils Planning 
Committees in order that they can continue to deliver effective and high-
quality decision making for residents. It should be noted that, although a 
planning application referred to Planning Committee will benefit from greater 
Member scrutiny; such applications may cost significantly more and take 
longer to process.

7. It is important, therefore, to have committee structures and a Scheme of 
Delegations which ensures that those applications which require the greater 
scrutiny afforded by a Planning Committee determination do so. Referring 
applications which do not have public interest, or which do not require 
additional scrutiny by a Planning Committee is not only inefficient but could 
hamper economic recovery/activity.

Page 9



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

8. To this end it is important that the role and structure of the planning committee 
process is kept under review, in effect to ensure that the committees are 
determining those applications which warrant greater scrutiny (in particular 
those in the public interest).

9. It is also important that those structures and the Scheme of Delegations adapt 
to legislative changes and there have been a number of major changes to 
planning legislation over recent years where the Scheme of Delegations has 
not always fully kept up. There has been the introduction of prior approval (so 
called fast-track applications) and major changes to the Use Classes Order. In 
effect the Scheme of Delegations refers to an outdated use classes order and, 
overall, there are compelling arguments for a major overhaul of the Committee 
structures and Scheme of Delegations.

Use Classes
10. The current Scheme of Delegations prevents any changes of use from A1 to 

other uses based on the premise that all uses other than A1 uses should be 
opposed. The latest version of the use classes order now groups together 
under what is called the ‘Sui generis’ use class, all the uses which are often 
viewed as not making a positive addition to town centres. In particular late 
night uses and those which have the potential to cause noise and disturbance 
(this recently expanded use class includes; amusement arcades, sex shops, 
taxi businesses, nightclubs, casinos, betting offices / shops, pay day loan 
shops, drinking establishments / wine bars & hot food takeaways).

11. Coffee shops, gym’s and beauty salons (none of which are in the A1 use 
class) all add vibrancy to town centres. Therefore, it is proposed that only 
applications that propose additions or changes to ‘Sui generis’ use classes 
need be referred to Planning Committee. Including other use classes will 
simply delay applications seeking to fill empty shops and commercial units. 

Green Belt
12. A further proposed change relates to development in the green belt. The 

Scheme of Delegations is to be amended to allows officers delegated 
authority to determine applications other than just householder applications. 
This is not allowed at present with the result, for example, that every 
application for a minor development at Brunel University (over 20 in the past 3 
years, including very minor uncontentious development such as a door 
canopy feature, solar panels and signs on buildings) has had to be referred to 
the Planning Committee. Harefield hospital and Mount Vernon hospital, 
although not subject to as many applications are similarly affected. The only 
contentious minor scale application in the past 3 years at these 3 sites was a 
waste storage area at Harefield hospital, but this was subject to a resident 
petition, so needed to be referred to Planning Committee anyway.

HS2
13. It is proposed to discontinue the HS2 Majors sub-committee. This has only 

been meeting every other month to consider a relatively small amount of 
applications relating to a mixture of larger, long-term impact proposals (e.g. 
Viaduct/tunnel portal & construction lorry routes) and much lesser impact 
proposals (e.g. ecology ponds and boundary fences). 

Page 10



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

14. It is proposed that the Scheme of Delegations be amended so that only those 
HS2 related proposals of greater impact to residents, such as the major 
engineering works and construction lorry routes, should be submitted to the 
Major Applications Committee to determine.

15. The HS2 Act only requires schedule 17 applications to be submitted to the 
Council for Lorry Route applications involving: ‘large goods vehicles over 7.5 
tonnes and more than 24 movements a day’ (12 in, 12 out). It is proposed that 
all such applications also be referred to the Major Applications Planning 
Committee for determination.

S73 Applications 
16. Over a 6-month period (July - Dec’ 2020) 40 applications were referred to the 

Major Applications Committee. Only a small number of the total were petition 
items (7). It should be noted that over the earlier 6-month period (Jan-June 
2020) there were 39 applications; hence, there is clearly consistency in 
application volumes. The Committee averaged 6-7 applications each meeting. 
One would expect this to be almost entirely large-scale applications with 
significant impacts on their surroundings. This is true of many of the 
applications the Committee deals with.

17. However, there is a not insignificant number of very minor variations to 
already approved developments or out of borough consultation responses. 
The variations (called S73 applications) are currently referred to Committee 
because they all involve deeds of variation to the original S106 agreement. 
These S73 applications are minor by definition or new full-applications would 
be required (most involve no changes to house unit numbers or increases in 
floorspace). It is, therefore, proposed that these be added to the Scheme of 
Delegations in order to increase the speed of determination and reduce the 
level of bureaucracy involved.

Out of Borough Applications
18. Out of Borough consultations also involve a lot of processing to enable 

authority to be given to issue an objection to a neighbouring development 
which has not been subject to consultation with LBH residents (often involving 
technical planning matters such as the protection of green belt). It is similarly 
proposed that the Scheme of Delegations be amended so that only those 
applications of this type which are of greater public interest be referred to the 
Major Applications Committee.

Petition Items
19. For the 6-month period July - Dec’ 2020, there were 29 reports that were 

petition items that were referred to the Central & South and North Planning 
Committees. The petition items with a large amount of public interest tend to 
be either flatted developments or HMO’s; these applications will typically 
involve multiple material planning considerations and have a healthy debate at 
Committee. Some cases can involve a large number of reasons for refusal. In 
parallel to the petitions are often numerous individual objections to such 
developments.

20. There is a very clear pattern regarding how the planning committees deal with 
householder applications with petitions. Those recommended for approval are 

Page 11



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

often debated and the Committee will often consider additional conditions to 
address the petitioner’s concerns; or very occasionally there can be overturns. 

21. Those recommended for refusal (in accordance with the petitioner’s requests) 
are almost universally refused in accordance with the officer’s 
recommendation. In part this is because there will be limited grounds to refuse 
a householder application (impact on the adjoining neighbour’s amenity and 
the adverse visual impact on the street scene of unsympathetic extensions 
being the two core reasons that apply in most cases).

22. It is recommended that those householder category applications where a 
petition has been received for refusal and the reasons for that refusal accord 
with officers’ recommendations, should be determined under the Scheme of 
Delegations. This change would enable the Committee to focus on the more 
contentious cases. Should a petition request additional reasons for refusal, not 
in accordance with officer recommendations, then this would be referred to 
committee for determination.

Enforcement Notices
23. A feature of the current Scheme of Delegations is a lack of delegation for 

enforcement notice process. Virtually every London Borough delegates to 
officers the ability to serve planning enforcement notices and breach of 
condition notices. This is so that enforcement action can be expedited, and 
maximum staff resource can be put into taking enforcement action against 
breaches of planning control, rather than Committee report writing. In cases of 
serious breaches of planning control, significant delays can occur due to the 
need to report to a committee which can run against the public interest i.e. the 
Council quickly enforcing against breaches of planning control.

24. Planning committees have not overturned an officer recommendation to take 
enforcement action at all in the last 10 years. It is, therefore, recommended 
that delegated authority be given to officers to serve such notices, subject to 
Ward Councillors being notified weekly of notices issued in their area and a 6 
monthly monitoring report being submitted to the relevant planning committee. 

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising directly out of this report. 

Legal Implications

Planning is an area which is heavily underpinned by a robust statutory and 
regulatory framework and determining applications submitted by HS2 Ltd under the 
High Speed Rail [London-West Midlands] Act 2017 has become an important part 
of the Council’s overall planning process. Given the changes made to planning 
legislation over recent years and the need to ensure that the integrity and 
robustness of planning decisions made by the Council is maintained to the current 
high standard, the Borough Solicitor can confirm that he is, from a legal 
perspective, supportive of the proposals to streamline the planning decision making 
process within the Council.

Background Papers: None

Page 12



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

v) MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES 2021/2022

Members will recall that Council adopted an Allowances Scheme for the current 
financial year at the meeting on 25 February. 

In light of the changes proposed in item iii) above, the following changes to the 
scheme are recommended for approval:

i) ‘Chairman of Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committee’ be amended to read 
‘Chairman of Select Committee’

ii) ‘2nd Party Lead on Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committee’ be amended to 
read ‘2nd Party Lead on Select Committee’

Dependent upon appointments made under item 9 on the agenda, there should be 
little or no change in the financial implications of the Scheme as the same amount of 
allowances will be paid in 2021/2022.

RECOMMENDATION: That the current Members’ Allowances Scheme be 
amended as detailed above.

Background Papers: None

vi) PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS 2021/22

Members will recall that Council adopted a Programme of Meetings for 2021 / 2022 
at the meeting on 25 February. 

In light of the changes proposed in items iii) & iv) above, Members are asked to 
adopt the proposed amended Programme as set out in Appendix 3. 

RECOMMENDATION: That the revised timetable of meetings for 2021/22 as set 
out in Appendix 3, be approved and the Head of Democratic Services in 
consultation with the Chief Whip of the Majority Party be authorised to make 
any amendments that may be required throughout the course of the year.

Members should note that during the year some meeting dates / times may change, 
or additional meetings may be called for the effective conduct of the council’s 
business.

Background Papers: None

vii) REVIEW OF COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES

Background

1. Members will be aware that the Council currently makes 113 appointments to a 
total of 48 local and London-wide organisations. The role Members are required 
to undertake can vary from Trustee, Director, Management Committee member 
or simply observer. Appointments are usually made under delegated authority, 
by the Head of Democratic Services under instruction from the Chief Whip of 
each group.

Page 13



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

2. In carrying out their duties as a Trustee, Director or Management Committee 
member, Councillors must take decisions without being influenced by the fact 
that they are a Councillor. Their primary duty in acting as a representative 
making management decisions for the outside body is to make these decisions 
in the interests of the organisation.

RECOMMENDATIONS: That:
a) using the criteria outlined below, the Head of Democratic Services be 

authorised to undertake a review of outside bodies to which the Council 
makes appointments.

b) following consultation, a report be submitted first to the Whips Committee 
and then to the Annual Council meeting in May 2022 regarding future 
appointments.

Information

3. The review of the Council structure carried out by the Local Government 
Boundary Commission in 2019 will be implemented in May 2022, reducing the 
number of elected Members by 12.

4. With this in mind, it is incumbent on the Council to look critically at all the areas 
of work Members undertake to ensure that the time spent adds value to the 
work of the Council and the role of the elected Member.

5. The Council is increasingly working in partnership with outside organisations 
and it is important to focus primarily on those bodies where funding streams 
may benefit the outside body and Council alike or where, for example there is 
significant local or national interest

6. To that end it is recommended that a review of all the outside organisations be 
undertaken to determine to which the Council should continue to appoint, using 
a broad range of criteria as follows:
a) The organisation is in receipt of significant funding from the Council;
b) The organisation has a pan-London or national membership which it would 

benefit the Council to be a part of;
c) The organisation is of significant local interest;
d) The organisation has other benefits to the Council (e.g. information 

gathering);
e) It is a statutory requirement for the Council to be a member of the 

organisation.

7. Consultation will then be undertaken with all the organisations concerned and 
with elected Members to form a series of recommendations as to which 
organisations the Council should continue to appoint to. A revised list will then 
be presented to the Council at the AGM in May 2022 following consideration by 
the Whips Committee.

8. It will be important for organisations to note that they can continue to appoint 
Members to their governing bodies in their own right, should the Council choose 
to no longer formally appoint a representative. 

9. There are no financial or legal implications arising from this report.
Background Papers: None

Page 14



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Appendix 1 
(extract of constitutional changes proposed)

PART 1 - SUMMARY AND EXPLANATION
INTRODUCTION

1. The Council’s Constitution

The London Borough of Hillingdon has agreed a Constitution, which sets out how 
the Council operates, how decisions are made, and the procedures that are 
followed to ensure that they are efficient, transparent and accountable to local 
people. Some of these processes are required by law, while others are a matter for 
the Council to choose.

The Constitution is divided into seven parts within which are sixteen articles, which 
set out the basic rules governing the Council’s business. More detailed procedures 
and codes of practice are provided in separate rules and protocols at the end of the 
document.

2. What is in the Constitution?

Article 1 of the Constitution commits the Council to making decisions in an efficient 
and effective way, giving leadership within the community, working in partnership 
with others and taking into account local views. Articles 2-16 explain the rights of 
citizens and how the key parts of the Council operate. These are:

(a) Members of the Council (Article 2).
(b) Citizens and the Council (Article 3).
(c) The Full Council (Article 4).
(d) Role and Functions of the Mayor (Article 5).
(e) Select Committees (Article 6).
(f) The Cabinet (Executive) (Article 7).
(g) Council Committees and Bodies (Article 8).
(h) The Standards Committee (Article 9).
(i) Joint Arrangements (Article 10).
(j) Officers (Article 11).
(k) Decision Making (Article 12).
(l) Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters (Article 13).
(m) Review and Revision of the Constitution (Article 14).
(n) Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution (Article 15).

Page 15



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

3. How the Council Operates

The Council is composed of 65 councillors, elected every four years. Councillors 
(who are also referred to as ‘Members’) are democratically accountable to residents 
of their ward. The overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they 
have a special duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them.

The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct to ensure high standards in the way 
Members undertake their duties. The Standards Committee trains and advises 
Members on the Code of Conduct.

All Councillors meet together as the Council. Meetings of the Council are normally 
open to the public. Here Councillors decide the Council’s overall polices and set the 
budget each year. The Council debates issues of current interest, considers and 
approves proposals from the Cabinet, discusses matters arising from the work of 
policy overview and scrutiny committees, and appoints Members to sit on the 
various council and policy overview and scrutiny committees, and on outside 
bodies.

4. The Council’s Structure

The Council has decided that the Leader and a group of Councillors whose 
appointments have been ratified by full Council, will carry out its executive 
functions. These Councillors have the power to make decisions either individually or 
collectively as a Cabinet. In addition, there are committees of the Council set up to 
make decisions that, by law, the Cabinet cannot make. Articles 7 and 8 explain and 
define what happens in practice.

5. How Decisions are made

The Cabinet is the part of the Council that is responsible for most day-to-day 
decisions. The Cabinet is made up of the Leader (appointed by the Council) and up 
to nine other Councillors. When major decisions (known as ‘key decisions’) are to 
be discussed or made, these are published in the Cabinet’s Forward Plan in so far 
as they can be anticipated. Where decisions are to be discussed at a meeting of the 
Cabinet, this is generally open for the public to attend except where personal or 
confidential matters are being discussed. The Cabinet has to make decisions that 
are in line with the Council’s overall policies and budget. If it wishes to make a 
decision which is outside the budget or policy framework, this must be referred to 
the Council as a whole to decide.

Decisions by committees dealing with non-Cabinet matters are made at meetings.  
They, too, are normally open to the public.

6. Select Committees

These committees support the work of the Cabinet and the Council as a whole. The 
committees are able to inquire into matters of local concern. This could lead to 
reports and recommendations which advise the Cabinet and the Council as a whole 
on its polices, budget and service delivery. The Committees monitor the decisions 
of the Cabinet and the performance of the Council’s services. The Committees will 
have the opportunity to comment on forthcoming decisions to be made by the 

Page 16



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Cabinet and will have the opportunity to contribute to the development of policy. 
Councillors on these committees can ’call-in’ a decision that has been made by 
the Cabinet but not yet implemented. 
The Executive Scrutiny Committee will consider whether the decision is 
appropriate, and it may recommend that the Cabinet reconsider the decision. 
The External Services Select Committee can examine the work of non-Council 
agencies in the Borough and advise the Cabinet of any issues of concern.

7. The Council’s Staff

The Council has people working for it (called ‘officers’) to give advice, implement 
decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some officers have a 
specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses its resources 
wisely. A code of practice governs the relationship between officers and Members 
of the Council. Officers have authority delegated to them either by the Council or 
the Cabinet to make decisions on routine matters. These delegations are set out in 
Part 3 of the Constitution.

8. Citizens’ Rights

Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. These are set 
out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal rights, whilst others depend 
on the Council’s own processes.

*******************************

ARTICLE 4 - THE FULL COUNCIL

4.01 Council Meetings

There are three types of Council Meeting:

(a) the annual meeting;
(b) ordinary meetings;
(c) extraordinary meetings:

and they will be conducted in accordance with the Council’s Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution.

4.02 Membership

All 65 Members of the Council.

4.03 The Role of Full Council

To act as a forum where all Members can meet on a regular basis, act as a focus 
for the Authority, discuss and debate issues of importance to the Borough and 
decide the Authority’s budgetary and policy framework.

Page 17



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

4.04 Terms of Reference

(a) To approve and adopt the following plans and strategies, or their successors, 
which together make up the Council’s budgetary and policy framework:

1. Budget1 and Council Tax including Council tax base
2. Community Strategy (Sustainable Community Strategy)
2. Council Plan
3. Best Value Performance Plan.
4. Children’s Services Plan (Children’s & Families Trust Plan)
5. Community Care Plan
3. Community Safety Strategy
4. Development Plan Documents (Local Development Framework 

including Development Plan Documents and Statement of 
Community Involvement)

5. Early Years Development Plan
6. Education Development Plan
7. Borough Transport Strategy
5. Youth Justice Plan (if required)
6. Housing Strategy
7. Statement of Licensing Policy
8. Statement of Gambling Policy

In addition, the Full Council will consider at its annual meeting whether any 
additional plans or strategies, both statutory or non-statutory, should be 
adopted or approved.

*******************************

ARTICLE 6 – SELECT COMMITTEES

6.01 Introduction

(a) The Council has appointed the following Select Committees to 
discharge the functions conferred by section 21 of the Local 
Government Act 2000: 

1. Corporate, Finance & Property Services Select Committee
2. Environment, Housing & Regeneration Select Committee
3. Public Safety & Transport Select Committee
4. Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee
5. External Services Select Committee 

b) The terms of reference for each of these Committees are set out in 
Table 1 of the Select Committee Procedure Rules which must be read 
together with the provisions of this Article. These Committees are 
collectively referred to as ‘Policy Overview, Scrutiny and Select 
Committees’.

1 The budget includes the allocation of financial resources to different services and projects, proposed contingency funds, the council tax 
base, setting the Council Tax, controlling the Council’s borrowing requirement and capital expenditure in line with CIPFA’s “Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities”, and the setting of virement limits.

Page 18



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

(c) The Select Committees are predominantly service-based and the 
Chairmen of the Committees may jointly agree to establish a Task and 
Finish Review Panel to undertake detailed reviews. The External 
Services, which has an external mandate, may also establish a Select 
Panel to undertake detailed reviews.

(d) The Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee may establish a 
Panel to oversee the corporate parenting responsibilities of the 
Council.

6.02 Role of the Select Committees

(a) Policy development and review: 

Other than the External Services Select Committee, these Committees 
may:

1. conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service which have 
either been referred by Cabinet, relate to the Cabinet Forward Plan, or 
have been chosen by the Committee according to the agreed criteria 
for selecting such reviews;

2. monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit 
(including the management of finances and risk);

3. comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for the 
Council services within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and 
Council;

4. consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the 
decision-maker on Key Decisions which relate to services within their 
remit (before they are taken by the Cabinet);

5. Call-in executive decisions made but not yet implemented in line 
with the call-in procedure outlined in Part 4 of the Constitution;

6. Review or scrutinise the impact of decisions taken by the Executive 
after they have been implemented.

7. Committees will not investigate individual complaints but will consider 
‘Councillor Calls For Action‘ submissions in accordance with the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

 (b) Executive Scrutiny Committee

The Executive Scrutiny Committee may

1. Call in key executive decisions made but not yet implemented in 
line with the call-in procedure outlined in Part 4 of the 
Constitution;

2. Review or scrutinise the impact of key decisions taken by the 
Executive after they have been implemented.

(c) External Services Select Committee

The External Services Select Committee may:

Page 19



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

1. Undertake the powers of health scrutiny conferred by the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013.

2. Work closely with the Health & Wellbeing Board & Local HealthWatch in 
respect of reviewing and scrutinising local health priorities and 
inequalities.

3. Respond to any relevant NHS consultations. 
4. Scrutinise and review the work of local public bodies and utility 

companies whose actions affect residents of the Borough. 
5. Identify areas of concern to the community within their remit and instigate 

an appropriate review process.
6. Act as a Crime and Disorder Committee as defined in the Crime and 

Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 and carry out the bi-
annual scrutiny of decisions made, or other action taken, in connection 
with the discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and 
disorder functions.

These roles will be undertaken in accordance with the terms of reference for 
each Committee outlined in Part 4 of the Constitution.

(d) Finance

The Select Committees may exercise overall responsibility for the finances 
made available to them. However, the Head of Democratic Services has 
responsibility for allocating finances to the individual committees.

(e) Reporting to Council

Select Committees must report at least annually to Full Council on their 
workings and make recommendations for future work programmes and amended 
working methods if appropriate.

(f) Officers

Select Committees may exercise overall responsibility for their work 
programmes and will have dedicated officer support to assist them in carrying out 
their official business.

(g) Holding Office

Committee members shall hold office until they resign, are removed from office or 
their successors are appointed.

6.03 Proceedings of Select Committees

As indicated in Article 6.01 above, the Select Committees will conduct their 
proceedings in accordance with the Select Committee Procedure Rules set out 
in Part 4 of the Constitution.

Page 20



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

ARTICLE 8 - COUNCIL COMMITTEES AND BODIES

8.01 General Duties of Council Committees

(a) Council Committees and bodies are required to determine those 
functions of the Council that are not within the remit of the Cabinet. This 
includes the determination of applications or the direct regulation of a 
person where sufficient discretion exists.

(b) Committees which have powers delegated to them from Full Council will 
report to the Council from time to time upon the exercise of their functions 
and, where appropriate, make recommendations.  Such Committees are 
listed in Articles 8.02 to 8.05.

(c) Committee members hold office until they resign, are removed from office 
or their successors are appointed.

8.02 Planning Committees

(please see changes proposed under appendix 2)

8.05 Appointments Committee

(a) Membership

The membership of the Committee will include at least one member of 
the Cabinet. The Committee will be politically balanced to determine 
employment matters in respect of Chief Officers. It may establish sub-
committees for the appointment of Deputy Chief Officers or other relevant 
officers for the discharge of functions set out below:

(b) Terms of Reference 

1. To determine all matters (including shortlistings, interviewing, salaries 
and service conditions) in the recruitment, selection and appointment 
of the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors and Directors, 
subject to the financial implications being within approved budgets. 
Full Council approval is required for the Chief Executive’s 
appointment.

2. Through a sub-committee, to interview and appoint Directors, other 
Chief Officer, Statutory or Deputy Chief Officer posts. Additionally, 
upon referral by the Leader of the Council, in conjunction with the 
Chief Executive and in accordance with the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules, to interview and appoint any other Chief Officer on 
JNC National Conditions of Service and any other appointments as 
deemed necessary. 

3. To establish and implement an annual appraisal and remuneration 
review process for the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors and 
Directors, based on clear performance targets and objectives.

4. To authorise a compensation package for the Council’s Chief 
Executive on or before the termination of his/her employment with the 
Council.

Page 21



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

8.06 Pensions Committee

(a) Membership

Councillor membership of the Committee will be 5, will be politically 
balanced and have voting rights. In addition, the Independent Adviser 
and Investment Consultant would normally attend meetings along with 
relevant officers in an advisory, non-voting capacity.

(b) Terms of Reference

1. To exercise all functions concerning the Pension Fund 
including, but not limited to: governance; funding; actuarial 
valuations; policies; accounting and audit; risk management, 
budgets and resourcing; investment, and administration.

2. To review and approve all aspects of investment policy relating to 
the Pensions Fund, including agreeing the strategic asset allocation 
and authorisation or prohibition of particular investment activities.

3. To review the Investment Strategy Statement and amend it when 
necessary.

4. To agree benchmarks and performance targets for the investment 
of the Fund’s assets and review periodically.

5. To agree to transfer funds into mandates managed by the London 
Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) as soon as appropriate 
opportunities become available.

6. To receive regular reports from investment managers including 
the London CIV and to agree and resultant actions from a review of 
the investments held with the London CIV.

7. To keep the performance of the investment managers under regular 
review and extend or terminate their contracts as required. To 
appoint new managers when necessary.

8. To agree policy guidelines for the exercise of voting rights attached 
to the Fund’s shares.

9. To review the appointment of specialist advisors and service 
providers and make new appointments as necessary.

10. To consider the overall implications of the Council’s policies 
for employment and benefits issues and their impact on the 
Pension Fund and agree any strategic changes.

10. To approve the appointment of persons to hear appeals under the 
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure.

11. To consider issues concerning the administration of the Fund, 
including approving responses to consultation papers.

12. To consider and decide whether to approve proposals for 
discretionary enhanced early retirement packages for officers.

11. To set up a Pensions Sub-Group, should it be required, 
comprising 3 Elected Members politically balanced and 
relevant officers and advisors to:
i. Be consulted on urgent decisions that are required to be 

taken by the Corporate Director of Finance in the absence 
of a Committee meeting;

ii. Assist in strategic discussions with regard to the 
Pensions Fund and Investment Strategy, including the 

Page 22



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

monitoring of fund manager performance and associated 
actions or investigations and making any 
recommendations on such matters to the Pensions 
Committee for decision.

12. The Corporate Director of Finance be authorised to take urgent 
decisions in relation to the pensions fund and investment strategy 
on behalf of the Committee, and if established, in consultation 
with any Pension Sub-Group, reporting back to the Pensions 
Committee for ratification.

*******************************

ARTICLE 11 – OFFICERS

12.01 Management Structure

(a) General

The Council engages such staff (referred to as officers) as it considers 
necessary to carry out its functions.

(b) Chief Officers

The Council engages persons for the following posts, who will be designated 
Chief Officers:

Post Function and Areas of Responsibility

Chief Executive
(Head of Paid Service)

 Working closely with the Leader of the 
Council and Cabinet to agree strategy and 
targets for the council

 Providing leadership and direction in the 
achievement of the Council’s strategic 
objectives

 Managing highest level external relationships
 Supporting other Directors to address specific 

priority issues 

Corporate Director of 
Finance

Responsible for:

 Corporate Finance
 Statutory Accounting & Pension Fund
 Financial Planning, Treasury, Capital 

Systems
 Exchequer and Business Assurance
 Procurement

Is the appointed Chief Finance Officer

Page 23



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Post Function and Areas of Responsibility
Corporate Director of 
Social Care & Health

Responsible for:

 Provider and Commissioned Care
 Adult Social Work
 Children’s Services
 Safeguarding, Partnership & Quality 

Assurance
 Special Educational Needs & Disabilities
 Health Integration & Voluntary Sector 

Liaison
 Public Health

Corporate Director of 
Planning, 
Environment, 
Education & 
Community Services

Responsible for:

 Planning & Regeneration
 Green Spaces, Sport & Culture
 Housing
 Education (day to day management of 

the Education Service on behalf of the 
Corporate Director of Social Care and 
Health, reporting to him as necessary)

 Trading Standards, Environmental Health 
& Licensing

 Community Safety & cohesion

Corporate Director of 
Infrastructure, 
Transport & Building 
Services

Responsible for:

 Property & Estates
 Capital Programme – Major Projects
 Repairs & Engineering
 Highways
 Waste Services
 ICT
 Transportation
 Parking Services
 Building Safety

Corporate Director of 
Corporate Services & 
Transformation

Responsible for:

 Democratic Services
 Legal Services
 Human Resources
 Corporate Communications
 Business Performance
 Programme Management (BID)
 Business Administration
 Customer Access

Page 24



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Post Function and Areas of Responsibility
Director of Public 
Health

Responsible for:

 Statutory public health matters

Reporting to the Corporate Director of Social 
Care & Health

*******************************

PART 3 – SCHEME OF DELEGATION TO OFFICERS
FUNCTIONS DELEGATED TO OFFICERS

Preamble

The full Council or the Cabinet have delegated the following functions to officers of 
the Council.

All delegated powers are exercised in accordance with Council policies, within any 
financial limits imposed and within any guidelines prescribed by the Cabinet or 
appropriate Committee.

Any action under these delegations shall strictly be in accordance with:

(a) policies approved by the Council, the Leader, Cabinet, a Cabinet Member or a 
Council committee

(b) the approved budget and approved management and business plans
(c) the Council’s Financial Regulations, Standing Orders and Contract Rules.

When exercising delegated powers on key matters, officers should maintain a close 
liaison with the relevant Cabinet Member and refer any proposed action to the 
Leader, Cabinet Member, or the Cabinet if so required by the Leader or the relevant 
Cabinet Member.

Delegations to the Chief Executive 

The Chief Executive is the officer responsible and accountable for:

 Working closely with the Leader of the Council and Cabinet to agree strategy 
and targets for the Council.

 Providing leadership and direction in the achievement of the Council’s strategic 
objectives.

 Managing highest level external relationships.
 Supporting other Corporate Directors to address specific priority issues. 

Specific delegations to the Chief Executive are:

1. To be the Council’s Head of Paid Service for the purposes of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989.

Page 25



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

2. To authorise generally or on any particular occasion an officer to exercise the 
delegated powers of any other officer.

3. To give directions that a delegated power shall or shall not be exercised in a 
particular way and on the application of delegated powers in general, except 
for any statutory powers vested in the Corporate Director of Social Care and 
Health, the Corporate Director of Finance and the Borough Solicitor.

4. To agree the terms and conditions of employment of all staff (other than the 
Chief Executive) and the creation, deletion or amendment of all the Council’s 
HR policies and procedures except that any and to approve proposals for 
discretionary enhanced early retirement packages for officers following 
written agreement by a majority of the Members of the Appointments 
Committee enhanced retirement packages shall be referred to the 
Pensions Committee for decision.

5. To suspend the statutory s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer pending an 
immediate summoning of the Investigations and Disciplinary Committee.

6. In respect of a Council capital project or revenue service, where an emergency 
or exceptionally urgent situation arises in relation to a commercial contract 
where:

a) The Leader and Chief Executive agree the urgency;
b) There is no Cabinet meeting imminent;
c) Any delay would seriously jeopardise the Council’s finances or its ability 

to deliver services and;
d) A previous executive decision has been made or proposed in respect of 

the capital project or service provision concerned,

authority is granted to the Chief Executive, subject to the written agreement of 
the Leader of the Council, to incur expenditure and make any new and 
necessary contractual decisions in order to secure the successful delivery of 
the project or service.

In such instances, the Council’s Procurement and Contract Standing Orders 
can be waived. Any decisions taken must be reported to a subsequent Cabinet 
meeting for formal ratification.

7. In conjunction with the Leader of the Council, to oversee the Hillingdon 
Improvement Programme and authorise expenditure on it.

8. Subject to the endorsement of the Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet 
Member(s), to authorise the transfer of non-executive powers under delegated 
authority granted by Council to another body in the best interests of the 
London Borough of Hillingdon.

9. To exercise all matters relating to Section 36 of the Counter Terrorism & 
Security Act 2015 in respect of the duty on local authorities and partners 
of local [CHANNEL] panels to provide support for people vulnerable to 

Page 26



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

being drawn into terrorism (PREVENT AGENDA) and to establish joint 
[CHANNEL] panel arrangements with other local authorities.

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Finance

The Corporate Director of Finance is the officer responsible and accountable 
for:

 Corporate Finance
 Statutory Accounting & Pension Fund
 Financial Planning, Treasury, Capital Systems
 Exchequer and Business Assurance
 Procurement

Statutory delegations to the Corporate Director

1. To act as and exercise the functions of the “chief finance officer” meaning the 
officer designated under section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.  

The full list of delegations granted by Council to the Corporate Director, along 
with those under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 which are sub-
delegated, are set out in the Internal Scheme of Delegations which form an 
appendix to the Constitution.

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health

The Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is the officer responsible and 
accountable for:

 All functions by being designated the statutory Director of Children’s Services.
 All adult social services functions by being designated the statutory Director of 

Adult Social Services.

Specific service areas responsible and accountable are:
 Provider and Commissioned Care
 Adult Social Work
 Children’s Services
 Safeguarding, Partnership & Quality Assurance
 Special Educational Needs & Disabilities
 Health Integration & Voluntary Sector Liaison
 Public Health (statutory delegations are to the Director of Public Health)

Statutory delegations to the Corporate Director

1. Specifically, the Corporate Director is to have overall responsibility for 
those functions which relate to children which are set out in:
a. The Children Act 20024 and in particular Section 18 which for the 

avoidance of doubt includes the functions conferred on or exercisable 
by the Council in its capacity as a local education authority.

b. Such other functions conferred on or exercisable by the Council as 
may be prescribed by the Secretary of State by regulation or which the 
Council may consider appropriate.

Page 27



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

2. Specifically, the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health is to be 
responsible for the delivery of local authority social services functions 
listed in Schedule 1 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970, as 
amended by the Children Act 2004.

The full list of delegations granted by Council to the Corporate Director, along 
with those under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 which are sub-
delegated, are set out in the Internal Scheme of Delegations which form an 
appendix to the Constitution.

Delegations to the Director of Public Health

Reporting and accountable to the Corporate Director of Social Care and Health, 
to be the statutory and responsible officer for the Borough’s health emergency 
planning and infection control and also the local authority’s public health functions 
pursuant to:

1. The Health and Social Care Act 2012 and any subsequent related legislation.
2. A responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003.
3. The Healthy Start and Welfare Food Regulations 2005 as amended.
4. Relevant sections of the NHS Act 2006, as amended by the 2012 Act.
5. Section 325 of the Criminal Justice Act 2003.
6. Any other relevant primary or secondary legislation.

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Infrastructure, Transport and Building 
Services

This Corporate Director is the officer responsible and accountable for:
 Property & Estates
 Capital Programme – Major Projects
 Repairs & Engineering
 Highways
 Waste Services
 ICT
 Transportation
 Parking Services
 Building Safety

The full list of delegations granted by Council to the Corporate Director, along 
with those under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 which are sub-
delegated, are set out in the Internal Scheme of Delegations which form an 
appendix to the Constitution.

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Planning, Environment, Education and 
Community Services

This Corporate Director is the officer responsible and accountable for:
 Planning & Regeneration
 Green Spaces, Sport & Culture
 Housing
 The day to day management of the Education Service on behalf of the 

Corporate Director of Social Care and Health, reporting to him as 
necessary.

Page 28



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

 Trading Standards, Environmental Health & Licensing
 Community Safety & cohesion

The full list of delegations granted by Council to the Corporate Director, along 
with those under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 which are sub-
delegated, are set out in the Internal Scheme of Delegations which form an 
appendix to the Constitution.

Delegations to the Corporate Director of Corporate Services and 
Transformation

This Corporate Director is the officer responsible and accountable for:
 Democratic Services
 Legal Services
 Human Resources
 Corporate Communications
 Business Performance
 Programme Management (BID)
 Business Administration
 Customer Access

The full list of delegations granted by Council to the Corporate Director, along 
with those under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 which are sub-
delegated, are set out in the Internal Scheme of Delegations which form an 
appendix to the Constitution.

*******************************

PART FOUR – RULES OF PROCEDURE

COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES (SCHEDULE A)

27. REMOTE & VIRTUAL MEETINGS

In respect of remote meetings where provided for by law, the Council 
may pass a continuing motion to vary, revoke or update these Standing 
Orders to facilitate the remote transaction of any business and voting.

COMMITTEE STANDING ORDERS (SCHEDULE B)

19. REMOTE & VIRTUAL MEETINGS

In respect of remote meetings where provided for by law, the committee 
may pass a continuing resolution to vary, revoke or update these 
Standing Orders to facilitate the remote transaction of any business and 
voting.

Page 29



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

EXECUTIVE PROCEDURE RULES (SCHEDULE C)

1.5 Executive Meetings – When and Where?

The Cabinet will meet as often as required at times to be agreed by the 
Leader. The Cabinet shall meet at the Council’s main offices or another 
location to be agreed by the Leader. Where provided for by law, the Leader 
of the Council may determine whether to hold such meetings and take 
executive decisions remotely or virtually.

SELECT COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES (SCHEDULE E)

1. What will be the Number and Arrangements for Select Committees?
 
The Council’s overview and scrutiny arrangements are set out in 
summary in Article 6. The Council has four Select Committees with a 
council service mandate and the ability to call-in executive decisions:
 Corporate, Finance & Property Services Select Committee
 Housing, Planning & Environment Select Committee
 Transport, Community Safety & Standards Select Committee
 Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee

Chairmen of these Select Committees may agree to establish a single 
Task and Finish Review Panel, subject to their Terms of Reference and 
operation set out in Table 1.

The Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee may establish a 
Panel to oversee the corporate parenting responsibilities of the Council, 
as set out in their Terms of Reference in Table 1.

The Council has one Select Committee with an external mandate:
 External Services Select Committee

This Committee may agree to establish a Task and Finish Select Panel, 
subject to their Terms of Reference and operation set out in Table 1.

The detailed Terms of Reference of all Select Committees are set out in 
Table 1 to this Schedule.

The Council will appoint to these committees as it considers appropriate from 
time to time.

2. Who may sit on Select Committees?

All Councillors except Members of the Cabinet and Cabinet Assistants may be 
Members of a Committee. However, no Member may be involved in 
scrutinising a decision with which he/she has been directly involved or has a 
prejudicial interest. 

All Councillors may attend a Select Committee meeting and address the 
Chairman of that Committee only at his/her discretion. Members may not 

Page 30



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

directly or indirectly question Members, Officers and individuals from outside 
the Council giving evidence unless they are members of the Committee 
concerned.

3. Co-optees

Each Select Committee shall be entitled to recommend to Council the 
appointment of permanent non-voting co-optees, or agreed as a committee 
a non-voting co-optee either as permanent members or for a limited 
duration as an advisor to assist with a specific review or work activity. 
project from a panel of advisers set up for this purpose.

The Leader of the Council may appoint co-opted members to Select 
Committees, determining the suitability and term of office of such 
appointments and reviewing the appointments on expiry of that term.

4. Education Representatives

The Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee shall include in its 
membership the following voting representatives:
(a) 1 Church of England diocese representative;
(b) 1 Roman Catholic diocese representative; and
(c) Such other representatives of faiths and denominations as may be 

appointed by the Council subject to a direction being issued by the 
Secretary of State.

(d) 3 parent governor representatives elected by parents.

Education representatives may only attend (in part) as members of this 
Committee meeting, for education related items / decisions on the 
agenda, which they may speak and vote on. 

5. Meetings of the Select Committees

Each Select Committees will determine its timetable of meetings in order to 
carry out its programme of work. The Chairman of a Committee may call a 
special meeting having consulted the Chief Whips of Party Groups and 
Opposition Leads. A special meeting may also be called on the requisition of 
at least two thirds of the whole number of the Committee delivered in writing to 
the Head of Democratic Services.

6. Quorum

The quorum for a Select Committees shall be 4 Members of the committee.

7. Who Chairs Select Committees Meetings?

The posts of Chairmen of the Committees will be decided by the Membership 
of that particular committee. 

Page 31



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

8. Work Programme

The Select Committees will be responsible for setting their own work 
programme, within their terms of reference. In doing so, they shall take into 
account the wishes of members on that Committee who are not members of 
the largest political group on the Council. Work programmes will span across 
municipal years, to provide for in-depth reviews and ensure flexibility in 
reporting to Cabinet.

9. Requests from Council / Cabinet to review specific matters

Select Committees shall respond, as soon as their work programme permits, 
to requests from the Council and the Cabinet, including individual Cabinet 
members for matters for which they have delegated authority, to review 
particular areas of Council activity. Where they do so, Select Committees 
shall report their findings and any recommendations back to the Cabinet, or if 
it is outside the budget and policy framework, the Council. The Council and/or 
the Cabinet shall normally consider the report of the Select within one month 
of receiving it.

10. Undertaking their Policy Review and Development role

(a) The role of the Select Committees in relation to the development of 
the Council’s budget and policy framework is set out in the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules.

(b) In relation to the development of the Council’s approach to other 
matters not forming part of its policy and budget framework, Select 
Committees may make proposals to the Cabinet for developments in so 
far as they relate to matters within their terms of reference.

(c) Select Committees (or a Panel) may hold enquiries and investigate the 
available options for future direction in policy development and may 
appoint advisers and assessors to assist them in this process. Such 
advisors and assessors would only be invited to speak on matters 
connected with their appointment. The Committees may go on site 
visits, conduct public surveys, hold public meetings, commission 
research and do all other things that they reasonably consider 
necessary to inform their deliberations. They may ask external 
witnesses to attend to address them on any matter under consideration 
and may pay to any advisers, assessors and witnesses a reasonable 
fee and expenses for doing so, provided that the budget provision is not 
exceeded. The Senior Democratic Services Manager will manage the 
overall budget, allocating amounts to individual Select Committees to 
spend as necessary.

11.  Reporting to Cabinet / Council

(a) Once it has formed recommendations on proposals for development, 
the Committee will prepare a formal report and submit it to the Head of 
Democratic Services for consideration by the Cabinet (if the proposals 
are consistent with the existing budgetary and policy framework), or to 
the Council as appropriate (e.g. if the recommendation would require a 

Page 32



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

departure from or a change to the agreed budget and policy 
framework).

(b) If a Committee cannot agree on one single final report to the Council or 
Cabinet as appropriate, then up to two minority reports may be 
prepared and submitted for consideration by the Council or Cabinet with 
the majority report.

(c) The Council or Cabinet shall normally consider the report of the 
Committee within one month of it being submitted to the Head of 
Democratic Services.

(d) Reports from Panels must be presented to Cabinet from and on behalf 
of their parent Committee(s) or as set out in Table 1.

(e) Reports from Committees within the remit of the Health & Wellbeing 
Board or any other Council Committee shall be referred to Cabinet first 
with a recommendation that the report then goes to the 
Board/Committee concerned.

(f) Select Committees and Panels may undertake reviews and submit 
reports spanning across municipal years, except in the year leading up 
to local council elections.

12. Making sure that reports are considered by the Cabinet

(a) The Forward Plan / agenda for Cabinet meetings shall include an item 
entitled ‘Issues arising from Select Committees’. The reports of Select 
Committees referred to the Cabinet shall, subject to Rule 2.5 of the 
Executive Procedure Rules, be included at this point in the agenda 
(unless they have been considered in the context of the Cabinet’s 
deliberations on a substantive item on the agenda), normally within one 
month of the Committee completing its report/recommendations.

(b) Committee Members will, in any event, have access to the Cabinet’s 
Forward Plan and timetable for decisions and intentions for 
consultation. Even where an item is not the subject of detailed 
proposals from a Committee following a consideration of possible 
policy/service developments, the Committee will be able to respond in 
the course of the Cabinet’s consultation process in relation to any Key 
Decision, following formal consultation.

13. Rights of Committee Members to Documents

(a) In addition to their rights as Councillors, Members of Select 
Committees have the additional right to documents, and to notice of 
meetings, as set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution.

(b) Nothing in this paragraph prevents more detailed liaison between the 
Cabinet and Select Committees as appropriate depending on the 
particular matter under consideration.

14. Cabinet Members and Senior Officers Formally Giving Account to a 
Select Committees or Panel

 (a) In accordance with their terms of reference, a relevant Select 
Committees or Panel may review or scrutinise any decisions made or 
actions taken in connection with the discharge of any Council functions, 

Page 33



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

subject to the matter being within their Terms of Reference. As well as 
reviewing documentation, in fulfilling the scrutiny role, it may require 
any Member of the Cabinet, the Head of Paid Service and/or any senior 
officer (third tier and above) to attend before it to explain in relation to 
matters within their remit:
(i) any particular decision or series of decisions;
(ii) the reasons for their action; 
(ii) the extent to which the actions taken implement Council policy; 

and/or
(iii) their performance

and it is the duty of those persons to attend if so required.

(b) When calling senior officers and/or Members to account, the Committee 
or Panel will remain bound by the Code of Conduct for Members and 
Co-opted Members. Any discussion concerning an employee’s salary or 
conditions of service would normally be dealt with in the confidential 
part of the meeting.  

(c) Committees and Panels shall take care to ensure that the questioning 
of Members, officers and individuals from outside the Council is 
conducted in a fair and balanced manner.

(d) Committees and Panels have the right to criticise the Council and its 
actions but this shall not extend to personal criticism of individuals.

(e) Where any Member or officer is required to attend a Committee or 
Panel under this provision, the Chairman of that Committee will inform 
the Head of Democratic Services. The Head of Democratic Services 
shall inform the Member or officer in writing or by email giving at least 
10 working days’ notice of the meeting at which he/she is required to 
attend. The notice will state the nature of the item on which he/she is 
required to attend to give account and whether any papers are required 
to be produced for the Committee or Panel. Where the account to be 
given to the Committee or Panel will require the production of a report, 
then the Member or officer concerned will be given sufficient notice to 
allow for preparation of that documentation.

(f) Where, in exceptional circumstances, the Member or officer is unable to 
attend on the required date, then the Committee or Panel shall in 
consultation with the Member or officer arrange an alternative date for 
attendance.

15. Informal attendance by Members, officers, officials and external 
witnesses

Any Cabinet Member, Member, senior officer and also more junior officers 
may be invited to attend to assist any Select Committees or a Panel on policy 
topics or any other matter within their work programme or remit.

The External Services Select Committee has the ability to request the 
attendance of local external officials from the Police and NHS under its 
statutory responsibilities and may also invite representatives from other public 
and private organisations providing services to the public in Hillingdon. 

Page 34



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

A Select Committees or Panel may invite people other than those people 
referred to in paragraph 14 above to address it, discuss issues of local 
concern and/or answer questions. It may for example wish to hear from 
residents, other stakeholders and shall invite such people to attend.

16. Call-in process by a Select Committee (other than the External Services 
Select Committee)

(a) When a decision is made by the Cabinet, a Cabinet Member, Cabinet 
Sub-Committee, or a Key Decision is made by an officer with delegated 
authority from the Cabinet, or under joint arrangements, the decision 
shall be published, including by electronic means, and shall be 
available at the Civic Centre normally within 2 working days of being 
made. 

(b) The notice of the decision will bear the date on which it is published and 
notified to all Members of the Council and will specify that the decision 
will come into force, and will then be implemented, on the expiry of 5 
working days from 5pm, after the publication of the decision, unless that 
decision is called-in by the Executive Scrutiny Committee.

(b) During that period, the Head of Democratic Services shall arrange 
for a call-in of a decision for scrutiny if so requested in writing by 
a majority of members of the relevant Select Committee who shall 
give their reasons for requesting that the decision be called in at 
the time of making the request.

(c) The request to call-in must be via the approved online form issued 
by the Head of Democratic Services and the ruling by the Head of 
Democratic Services on the relevant Select Committee (and 
therefore Members of) to initiate and hear a call-in based on their 
Terms of Reference shall be final.

(d) The Head of Democratic Services shall then notify the relevant 
decision-maker (Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Officer), Chief 
Executive and Corporate Director that a valid call-in has been 
received and that the decision must be put on hold and not 
implemented.

(e) The Head of Democratic Services, in consultation with the 
Chairman of the relevant Select Committee, will then call a 
meeting of that Committee as soon as possible and in any event, 
to be held within 10 working days of the valid call-in request.

(f) The Select Committee will receive the original report on the 
decision, any additional information required given the reasons for 
the call-in and may invite relevant officers / Cabinet Member(s) to 
the meeting to give account. 

(g) If the Select Committee agrees to uphold the decision made, then 
via majority vote, the decision stands and can be implemented 
with immediate effect.

(h) If, having considered the decision further, the Select Committee 
object to or are still concerned about the decision, then via 
majority vote, it may:
i. refer it back to the decision-making person or body for 

reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its 
concerns. The decision-making body or person, considering 

Page 35



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

all factors, then will make a final decision on the matter and 
that decision stands and comes into immediate effect.

ii. refer the matter to full Council, but only in the circumstances 
set out below.

If for any reason following a valid call-in request, the Select 
Committee does not formally meet within 10 working days of the 
date of the request, the original decision shall take effect at the 
end of the 10-day period.

Referral of call-in to full Council

A decision will not be referred to full Council unless either the 
Committee believes it to be contrary to the Policy Framework or Budget 
or considers that it was a Key Decision that was not dealt with as such 
by the Cabinet. If it is referred to the decision maker, they shall then 
reconsider within a further 5 working days, amending the decision or 
not, before adopting a final decision.

If the matter was referred to full Council and the Council does not object 
to a decision which has been made, then no further action is necessary, 
and the decision will be effective in accordance with the provision 
below.

If the Council does object, it has no authority to make decisions in 
respect of a Cabinet decision unless it is contrary to the policy 
framework, or contrary to or not wholly consistent with the budget. 
Unless that is the case, the Council will refer any decision to which it 
objects back to the decision-making person or body, together with the 
Council’s views on the decision. That decision-making body or person 
shall choose whether to amend the decision or not before reaching a 
final decision and implementing it. Where the decision was taken by the 
Cabinet as a whole or a Committee of it, a meeting will be convened to 
reconsider within 10 working days of the Council request. Where the 
decision was made by an individual, the individual will reconsider within 
10 working days of the Council request.

If the Council does not meet, or if it does but does not refer the decision 
back to the decision making body or person, the decision will become 
effective on the date of the Council meeting or expiry of the period in 
which the Council meeting should have been held, whichever is the 
earlier.

1. Waiver of call-in period under urgent circumstances (urgency or special 
urgency decisions by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member)

The call-in procedure set out above shall not apply where the decision being 
taken by the Cabinet or Cabinet member is urgent. A decision will be urgent if 
any delay likely to be caused by the call-in process would seriously prejudice 
the Council’s or the public’s interests or could lead to an (increased) risk of 
damage to people or property. The record of the decisions, and notice by 
which it is made public shall state whether in the opinion of the decision 

Page 36



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

making person or body, the decision is an urgent one, and therefore not 
subject to call-in.  

The Chairman of the relevant Select Committee (or Vice-Chairman in 
their absence) must be informed that the decision will be implemented 
immediately upon him/her agreeing that the decision is reasonable and to it 
being treated as a matter of urgency. In the absence of the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman then the Mayor (or Deputy Mayor if required) can take this decision. 
Decisions taken as a matter of urgency must be reported to the next available 
meeting of Council, together with the reasons for urgency.

18. Procedure at Select Committees Meetings

Select Committees and any Panels shall consider the following business:
(i) minutes of the last meeting;
(ii) declarations of interest ;
(iii) referrals from Cabinet/Council for reviews by the Select Committees if 

applicable; and
(iv) the business otherwise set out on the agenda for the meeting as 

determined by the Committee’s Work Programme or the Chairman.
.
1. Principles of undertaking reviews or investigations

Where a Select Committees or Panel conducts reviews or investigations (e.g. 
with a view to policy development), the Committee may also ask people to 
attend to give evidence at Committee meetings which are to be conducted in 
accordance with the following principles:
(i) that the investigation be conducted fairly and all Members of the 

Committee be given the opportunity to ask questions of attendees, and 
to contribute and speak;

(ii) that those assisting the Committee by giving evidence be treated with 
respect and courtesy; and

(iii) that the investigation be conducted so as to maximise the efficiency of 
the investigation or analysis.

2. Protocol on Overview & Scrutiny and Cabinet Relations (adopted by 
Council 12.09.19)

In addition to the procedures set out in Schedule E, a Protocol in Table 2 
sets out the practical expectations of Select Committees Members and 
Cabinet Members to ensure an effective relationship that adds value to 
overview and scrutiny governance in Hillingdon.

TABLE 1 - TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Following Terms of Reference are common to the following Select 
Committees:

 Corporate, Finance & Property Services Select Committee
 Environment, Housing & Regeneration Select Committee
 Public Safety & Transport Select Committee
 Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee

Page 37



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

1. To conduct reviews of policy, services or aspects of service which have either 
been referred by Cabinet, relate to the Cabinet Forward Plan, or have been 
chosen by the Committee according to the agreed criteria for selecting such 
reviews;

2. To monitor the performance of the Council services within their remit (including 
the management of finances and risk);

3. To comment on the proposed annual service and budget plans for the Council 
services within their remit before final approval by Cabinet and Council;

4. To consider the Forward Plan and comment as appropriate to the decision-
maker on Key Decisions which relate to services within their remit (before they 
are taken by the Cabinet);

5. To review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken by the Cabinet, a 
Cabinet Member, a Council Committee or an officer.

6. To make reports and recommendations to the Council, the Leader, the Cabinet, 
a Select Committees or any other Council Committee arising from the exercise 
of the preceding terms of reference.

7. To exercise the right set out in the Select Committee Procedure Rules to 
call-in and recommend for reconsideration any key decisions made but 
not yet implemented by the Cabinet, a Cabinet Member, a Council Cabinet 
Sub-Committee or an officer. This would include any key decision that 
needs further information from the decision-maker to explain why it was 
taken.

8. In accordance with the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, to consider ‘Councillor Calls For Action’ (CCfA) submissions.

The CCfA is a process designed to help Councillors resolve issues and problems on 
behalf of their residents, acting as a last resort for people who have been unable to 
get issues resolved through other means. CCfA should not be regarded merely as a 
scrutiny process and an issue can only become a CCfA once a Councillor has 
exhausted all other steps to resolve an issue in his or her ward such as a 
petition hearing, correspondence with elected Members and officers, questions 
to Council etc…Whilst CCfA’s may be submitted by all Councillors on any issue, 
there are certain exceptions which are:
(a) An issue relating to a planning appeal, licensing appeal or where a person has 

an alternative avenue to resolve an issue (e.g. through an appropriate 
complaints process)

(b) Any matter which is vexatious, discriminatory or not reasonable to be included 
in the agenda for, or to be discussed at, a meeting of the overview and scrutiny 
committee

Procedure
(a) A Member may submit a CCfA in writing to the Head of Democratic Services 

who will seek to confirm with the Member concerned if all other potential 
avenues to resolve the issue in question have been exhausted and that the 
request does not fall within the exemptions detailed above. If necessary the 
Head of Democratic Services will discuss the matter with the Leader of the 
Council, the appropriate Cabinet Member and the Chief Whip. 

(b) If satisfied that the CCfA is valid the Head of Democratic Services will submit 
the request to the appropriate Committee Chairman for inclusion on the agenda 
for the next meeting of the Select Committees.

(c) Relevant officer(s) and / or representatives from partner organisations may be 
invited to attend and information can be requested from such organisations.

Page 38



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

(d) Discussion would take place at Committee to explore potential solutions and the 
item would end with the Committee recommending a course of action to the 
appropriate body – including detailed financial consequences and budgetary 
proposals.

(e) The process may not necessarily resolve the issue immediately but the process 
will act as a spur for Members and officers to work together to jointly develop 
policies to overcome the problem.

Note: Select Committees will not investigate individual complaints.

*******************************

Environment, Housing & Regeneration Select Committee

Membership

7 Councillors appointed on a proportional basis.

Terms of Reference

To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following Cabinet 
Member portfolio(s) and service areas:

Cabinet Member Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Housing & Regeneration

Relevant service areas 1. Planning & Regeneration 
2. Housing
3. Green Spaces, Sport & Culture (only 

Green Spaces)
4. Waste Services

This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topics:

 Climate Change
 Local impacts of Heathrow expansion
 Local impacts of High Speed 2

Page 39



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Public Safety & Transport Select Committee

Membership

7 Councillors appointed on a proportional basis.

Terms of Reference

To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following Cabinet 
Member portfolio(s) and service areas:

Cabinet Member Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Public Safety & 
Transport

Relevant service areas 1. Community Safety & Cohesion
2. Anti-Social Behaviour and Enforcement 

Team (ASBET)
3. Trading Standards, Environmental Health 

& Licensing
4. Transportation
5. Highways
6. Parking Services

This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topics:

 Enforcement activities across the Council

Page 40



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee

Membership

7 Councillors appointed on a proportional basis, and if appointed up to 2 
voting church and 3 voting parent governor education representatives. Such 
representatives are only able to vote on education issues as defined in the 
Education Act. Attendance by education representatives shall be as set out in 
paragraph 4 of these rules.

Terms of Reference

To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following Cabinet 
Member portfolio(s) and service areas:

Cabinet Member 
Portfolios

 Cabinet Member for Families, Education & 
Wellbeing

 Cabinet Member for Health & Social Care

Relevant service areas 1. Children's Services (including corporate 
parenting)

2. Adult Social Work
3. Safeguarding
4. Provider & Commissioned Care
5. SEND
6. Public Health
7. Health integration / Voluntary Sector
8. Education
9. Children and Families Development 

(including Early Years and Children's 
Centres)

10.Green Spaces, Sport & Culture (only 
young people universal services, adult 
education, music hub, sport, libraries, 
culture and heritage)

This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topic:

 Domestic Abuse services and support 

This Select Committee may establish a Panel to support strong oversight of the 
Council’s corporate parenting responsibilities. The Committee may appoint 3 
Members to this Panel based on political balance. Membership may include non-
Cabinet Members not on the Committee. The Committee may also appoint relevant 
Council officers and other external stakeholders to the Panel and agree its 
chairmanship and operation. In agreeing its operation, the Committee will provide for 
the Panel not to be able to establish any other sub-group or body to carry out its 
responsibilities.

Page 41



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Corporate, Finance & Property Services Select Committee

Membership

7 Councillors appointed on a proportional basis.

Terms of Reference

To undertake the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the following Cabinet 
Member portfolio(s) and service areas:

Cabinet Member 
Portfolios

 Leader of the Council
 Cabinet Member for Property & 

Infrastructure
 Corporate Services & Transformation
 Cabinet Member for Finance 

Relevant service areas 1. Democratic Services
2. Corporate Communications
3. Capital Programme - Major Projects
4. Repairs & Engineering (including housing 

repairs)
5. Building Safety / Facilities Management
6. Property & Estates
7. Corporate Finance
8. Procurement 
9. Exchequer & Business Assurance 

Services 
10. ICT
11.Legal Services
12.Human Resources
13.Business Administration
14.Business Performance
15.Customer Access
16.Business Improvement Delivery (BID)

This Committee will also act as lead select committee on the monitoring and 
review of the following cross-cutting topic:

 Resident Experience
 Strategic Partnerships
 Community Engagement

Page 42



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Task and Finish Review Panels

Membership

Membership of a Review Panel may include non-Cabinet Members not on the 
‘parent’ Committee(s) or co-opted Members as set out in paragraph 3 above. Panel 
membership will be subject to the usual political balance rules.

‘Review’ Panel Terms of reference

Chairmen of the: 
 Corporate, Finance & Property Services Select Committee
 Environment, Housing & Regeneration Select Committee
 Public Safety & Transport Select Committee
 Families, Health & Wellbeing Select Committee

may jointly agree to establish Task and Finish Review Panels as set out in these 
Procedure Rules on the following matters:
1. Focussed reviews within a particular Committee’s remit
2. Cross-cutting reviews that cover the remit of more than one Committee;
3. Any functions, but within the purview of the Council, not included within the 

remit of any Committee;

A single Task and Finish Review Panel may be in operation at any one time and co-
ordination of this will be by the three four Select Committees Chairmen. The 
Chairmen will jointly agree the review topic, terms of reference, membership and 
chairmanship of any Panel. They will also agree the timescale for undertaking the 
review, including which Committee it will report back its findings to for consideration, 
prior to any report being presented to Cabinet. For reviews that span across the remit 
of more than one committee, any findings from a Panel will be reported to the 
Corporate Services, Finance & Property Select Committee, unless the Chairmen 
jointly agree otherwise. 

Executive Scrutiny Committee

Membership

8 Members, appointed on a proportional basis. 2 voting church and 3 voting parent 
governor representatives when the decision made by Cabinet or any decision called-
in that relates wholly or in part to any education functions which are the responsibility 
of the authority’s Cabinet. Attendance by education representatives shall be as set 
out in paragraph 4 of these rules.

The Committee will normally meet in an informal capacity immediately after the 
conclusion of a meeting of Cabinet to consider which decisions the Members of the 
Committee might require further information about or to consider for potential call-in. 
Although meeting in an informal capacity, should there not be a consensus as to 
which decisions require such consideration then the matter will be determined by a 
majority vote of those Members of the Committee present and able to vote (with 
respect to the normal rules as set out in the Code of Conduct).

Page 43



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Terms of Reference

To exercise the right set out in the Policy Overview, Scrutiny and Select Procedure 
Rules to call-in and recommend for reconsideration any key decisions made but not 
yet implemented by the Cabinet, a Cabinet Member, a Council Cabinet Sub-
Committee or an officer. This would include any key decision that needs further 
information from the decision-maker to explain why it was taken.

External Services Select Committee

This Committee has an external mandate and reviews the performance and 
accountability of local service providers other than the Council. It also has 
statutory responsibilities to scrutinise the local health sector and community 
safety partnership.

Membership

7 8 Councillors appointed on a proportional basis.

Terms of Reference

1. To undertake the powers of health scrutiny conferred by the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013.

2. To work closely with the Health & Wellbeing Board & Local HealthWatch in 
respect of reviewing and scrutinising local health priorities and inequalities.

3. To respond to any relevant NHS consultations. 
4. To scrutinise and review the work of local public bodies and utility companies 

whose actions affect residents of the Borough. 
5. To identify areas of concern to the community within their remit and instigate an 

appropriate review process.
6. To act as a Crime and Disorder Committee as defined in the Crime and 

Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 and carry out the bi-annual 
scrutiny of decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by the responsible authorities of their crime and disorder functions.

The External Services Select Committee may establish, appoint members and agree 
the Chairman of a Task and Finish Select Panel to carry out matters within its terms 
of reference, but only one Select Panel may be in operation at any one time. The 
Committee will also agree the timescale for undertaking the review. The Panel will 
report any findings to the External Services Select Committee, who will refer to 
Cabinet as appropriate.

Page 44



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

TABLE 2 – PROTOCOL ON OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY AND CABINET 
RELATIONS (adopted by Council 12.09.19)

This protocol sets out the practical expectations of Select Committee Members 
and Cabinet Members to ensure an effective relationship that adds value to 
overview and scrutiny governance in Hillingdon.
Notwithstanding their independent role, Committee Members are expected to:

 Take into account suggestions from Cabinet Members as well as other 
stakeholders, on the development of their multi-year work programmes or policy 
reviews to ensure strong organisational and community support;

 Ensure appropriate early engagement with Cabinet Members on draft policy 
review recommendations in order to gauge support. 

 Seek early engagement with the relevant Cabinet Member, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Property and Business Services and Leader of the Council to 
consider the viability of draft policy review recommendations that may have a 
financial consequence;

 Seek the support of the relevant Cabinet Member, Leader of the Council and 
Corporate Director when it considers to compel a particular contractor providing 
Council services to provide information or attend a meeting;

 Through Democratic Services, ensure Corporate Directors and Cabinet 
Members are kept regularly informed about the committee’s activity and multi-
year work programmes.

 Liaise with the relevant Corporate Director, Cabinet Member and Leader of the 
Council should exceptional financial or officer resources be required in order to 
undertake a particular future work activity or policy review.

Respecting the independent role of the committees, Cabinet Members are 
expected to:

 Never personally seek to direct the activity of a committee, though they may 
make suggestions or request matters of interest to be considered by a 
Committee; 

 Ensure their attendance to provide information when requested by the 
Committee (noting that further informal and formal provisions by a committee 
for this are set out in the Constitution).

 Actively support the provision of relevant council information and other requests 
from the Committee as part of their work programme;

 Fully and openly, consider any findings from a committee following a formal 
scrutiny call-in or from any final recommendations presented to Cabinet from a 
policy review.

 Where feasible, provide opportunities for committees to provide their input on 
forthcoming executive reports as set out in the Forward Plan to enable wider 
pre-decision scrutiny (in addition to those statutorily required to come before 
committees);

 Ensure all recommendations from committees approved by the Cabinet are 
implemented in a timely and effective manner by officers, and that this be 
monitored regularly by Corporate Directors, as it is with the Committees 
themselves.

In the unlikely event that that a difference in view occurs between the parties, the 
Committee Chairman, Committee Member or Cabinet Member should inform the 

Page 45



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Statutory Scrutiny Officer, who will seek to resolve the matter in accordance with this 
protocol, the Council’s Constitution and other relevant guidance and will consider the 
best interests of both overview & scrutiny and the executive. Should the matter not be 
resolved, any final determination will be by the Monitoring Officer. The Statutory 
Scrutiny Officer will report on the effectiveness of this protocol as part of the Annual 
Report to Council each year.

*******************************

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES (SCHEDULE F)

6. Appointment of Chief Officers, Deputy Chief Officers and other relevant 
officers (other than the Chief Executive)

The Appointments Committee will interview and appoint Chief Officers Deputy 
Chief Executive, who are Corporate Directors and Directors). An 
Appointments Sub-Committee will interview and appoint all other Chief 
Officers and Deputy Chief Officers (including Deputy Directors / Heads of 
Service) and additionally, upon referral by the Leader of the Council in 
conjunction with the Chief Executive, a sub-committee may interview and 
appoint any other Chief Officer on JNC National Conditions of Service and any 
other appointments as deemed necessary. 

*******************************

PROCUREMENT & CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS (SCHEDULE H)

Standing Order 4

Invitations to Tender

4.1 a) Tenders or quotations shall be invited for all proposed contracts with an 
estimated total contract value, equal to or exceeding the minimum 
thresholds as set out in the Procurement Standard Operating 
Procedures. These thresholds are as follows: -

Total Value Minimum number 
of quotations or 

tenders

Award criteria

£0 – £10,000 
£25,000

3 Quotations Lowest price to apply 
Most economically 

advantageous 
£10,000 – £50,000 
£25,000 - £100,000

5 Quotations Most economically 
advantageous quotation

£50,000 £100,000 
& above

5 Tenders Most economically 
advantageous tender

Pursuant to paragraph 1.1, every invitation to tender shall comply with all 
regulations and directives in force at that time.

Page 46



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

b) Where the award criteria is based on most economically advantageous 
tender, unless agreed in writing by Cabinet Member for Finance or the 
Leader of the Council, in conjunction with the Head of Procurement, 
there will be three tiers of weighting reflecting the varied nature of 
services the Council procures: tender evaluations shall be based on 
a minimum of 80% weighting in favour of price. 
i. Goods / works and services considered to be a commodity 

and / or ones that are not considered to impact the strategic 
outcomes of the Council shall be based on a minimum 80% 
weighting in favour in price. 

ii. Goods / works and services where the quality of outcome is 
heavily influenced by the supplier selection (e.g. consultancy 
and professional services) shall be based on a maximum of 
80% weighting in favour of quality. 

iii. All other requirements, where price and quality are deemed to 
be of equal importance when considered in the context of the 
Council’s operating and financial environment, should be 
undertaken on the basis of equal cost / quality split. It is 
expected that the majority of requirements will fall under this 
tier.

4.2 EU directives and regulations shall apply to the procurement of contracts with 
an estimated aggregate value equal to or exceeding the EU thresholds listed 
below that are in force at the time of tender, as set out in the Procurement 
Standard Operating Procedures and pursuant to paragraph 4.3:- 

Goods 
and 
services

£181,302 or 
greater

Minimum 5 
Tenders
to be sought

Most economically 
advantageous 
tender or lowest 
price

Works £4,551,413 
or greater

Minimum 5 Tenders 
to be sought

Most economically 
advantageous tender 
or lowest price

* The Head of Democratic Services may update the above OJEU figures in the 
Standing Orders, as and when prescribed from time to time.

4.3 Unless it is in the best interests of the Council, or forms part of a provision of 
duty of care, no requirement for goods, works or services may be sub-divided 
into smaller contracts with the intention of circumventing the requirements of 
paragraph 4.1, or for the purpose of avoidance of EU statutory requirements, 
as stated in Regulation 8 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

4.4 Pursuant to paragraph 4.1 and the requirement for obtaining best value and 
adequate competition, competitive tenders or quotations shall not be required 
if the Approved Officer is satisfied, and has obtained written agreement from 
the Head of Procurement and the Leader of the Council, that:
(i) it is not reasonably practicable or prudent in meeting the Council’s 

objectives to obtain competitive tenders or quotations; or
(ii) there would be no effective or genuine competition; or 
(iii) it is necessary to safeguard life or property; or
(iv) the works, services or goods will be obtained through an approved 

buying consortium, or from their nominated suppliers; or

Page 47



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

(v) the works, services or goods will be obtained through a corporately 
tendered and managed contract that has been established for all officers 
of the Council to use, and

(vi) all such decisions are authorised by the Head of Procurement in 
writing.

4.5 Before proceeding in accordance with paragraph 4.1 in relation to any 
expenditure, the Approved Officer shall consult the Procurement Standard 
Operating Procedures, to confirm and determine how the goods, works or 
services should be tendered.  Appropriate guidance shall also be sought from 
the Procurement Team.

4.6 Tenders for all proposed contracts with an estimated total contract value 
greater than £50,000 shall be conducted by the Procurement Team, unless 
otherwise instructed by the Head of Procurement. All such tenders shall be 
published on the appropriate eTendering portal as advised by the 
Procurement Team.

Standing Order 5

Custody, Receipt & Opening of Tenders by Democratic Services

5.1 The Approved Officer shall ensure that custody, opening and acceptance of 
tenders is in accordance with the Procurement Standard Operating 
Procedures.

5.2. Receipt and custody of tenders
(a) Tenders shall be returned by the tenderer to the Civic Centre. 

Electronic tenders shall be returned to the email address specified in 
the tender instructions, or uploaded to the appropriate e-tendering 
portal as specified.

(b) On receipt by the Council, tenders shall be date-and time-stamped on 
their envelope or outer wrapper.  Each electronic tender received shall 
be electronically date stamped.

(c) The Mail Room Supervisor, or equivalent officer responsible for 
receiving mail or online documents, shall: 
(i) provide a receipt for tenders received, on request;
(ii) keep a record of the number of tenders received: 
(iii) after the time and date specified for their return, hand all tenders 

received to the officer responsible for them, and obtain a receipt / 
signature.

(d) Tenders shall be kept in secure custody until they are opened.  
Electronic tenders shall be stored in a secure folder.

Advisory Note

Supplementary to Standing Order 5, please note that currently all tenders are 
managed through capital e-sourcing which will contain a record of all tenders 
received and opened. 

Page 48



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

5.3. Register of tenders

A register of tenders received shall be maintained by each Corporate Director 
and updated by each Approved Officer as necessary.  The register should 
contain details of each tender, the signatures of the officer opening the tenders 
and the witness and the signature of the officer to whom the tenders were 
passed for custody after opening. Where tenders are received electronically 
this register shall be maintained within the appropriate eTendering portal as 
advised by the Procurement team.

5.4     Tender opening

(a) Tenders shall be opened at one time and only in the presence of such 
officer or officers as the Head of Democratic Services and/or Approved 
Officer or the Corporate Procurement Unit may determine.

(b) An officer from the Corporate Procurement Unit or Democratic Services 
should be present when tenders are opened. 

(c) The tenders shall be opened one at a time and the opening sequence 
recorded, together with any appropriate comments or notes.

(d) As each tender is opened the name of each tenderer and the amount of 
the tender must be recorded in the tender register.

5.5    Late Tenders

(a) A tender received after the last date and time when tenders should be 
received must be recorded as a late tender in the tender register.

 (b) Such a late tender shall only be opened and considered for acceptance 
on the authorisation of the Head of Procurement and the Head of 
Democratic Services.

 (c) The Head of Procurement and the Head of Democratic Services may 
consider that a tender received late should be considered for 
acceptance under the following circumstances:
(i) there is a bona fide reason, recorded in writing, for the tender 

being late; and
(ii) other tenders that have arrived on time have not been opened.

(d) Where a tender received late is for a contract greater than £50,000, the 
Head of Procurement and Head of Democratic Services shall in addition 
seek approval from the Borough Solicitor Cabinet Member for 
Finance prior to considering it for acceptance.

(e) Where a tender received late is for a contract value of greater than 
£250,000, the Head of Procurement and Head of Democratic Services 
shall in addition seek approval from the Borough Solicitor Leader of 
the Council prior to considering it for acceptance.

(f) In circumstances where the Head of Procurement and the Head of 
Democratic Services are uncertain whether a late tender should be 
opened and considered for acceptance, the matter should be referred 
to the Borough Solicitor for legal advice.

Page 49



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Standing Order 6

Acceptance of tenders and financial thresholds for authority

6.1 General Rules

Where tenders or quotations have been received in accordance with the 
Procurement Standard Operating Procedures, they can only be accepted if the 
Approved Officer has satisfied themselves that: -
a) All approvals required by Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Delegated Officers 

set out in these Standing Orders, the Council’s Constitution and Financial 
Regulations have been obtained first;

b) the tender is compliant;
c) the tender offers best value in accordance with the Procurement 

Standard Operating Procedures.
d) all appropriate risks have been assessed and mitigated, as required by 

Procurement Standard Operating Procedures.

6.2 Acceptance of tenders or quotations

A tender or quotation summary report recommending final contractor selection 
will be required prior to acceptance. This document will form the basis for 
decisions required as set out below.
(a) In the case of a tender or quotation which does not exceed £9,999 

£24,999 for which budgetary provision exists, the Approved Officer shall 
be authorised to accept the most satisfactory quote or tender using the 
designated financial system.

(b) In the case of a tender or quotation which is between £10,000 £25,000 
and £50,000 £99,999 for which budgetary provision exists, the Approved 
Officer, with informal written acceptance provided by the relevant Cabinet 
Member portfolio holder and / or Leader of the Council shall be 
authorised to accept the most satisfactory tender.

(c) In the case of a tender which between £50,000 £100,000 and £499,999 
for which budgetary provision exists, the relevant Cabinet Member 
portfolio holder in conjunction with the Leader of the Council or Cabinet 
Member for Finance shall be authorised to accept the most satisfactory 
tender through the formal democratic process.

(d) In the case of a tender of £500,000 and above for which budgetary 
provision exists, the Cabinet shall be authorised to accept the most 
satisfactory tender through the formal democratic process.

(e) Additional authority may be provided for (or required) as set out in section 
6.3 in order to accept tenders outside the ordinary thresholds above or 
for those significant in nature.

(e) A re-assessment of the Contractors financial stability shall be carried out 
where the tender value exceeds £100,000. This would normally be 
undertaken during the pre-qualification and/or at the tender submission 
stage of the process. This information should be presented in any report 
to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member.

(f) Tenders or quotations can only be accepted in accordance with the 
agreed award criteria i.e. most economically advantageous or lowest 
price. 

Page 50



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

In the case of decisions required by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member then the 
procedures in Standing Order 3.3 shall be followed.

6.3 Authority levels for tender or quotation acceptance

(a) Council has agreed the following financial thresholds for authority to accept 
a tender or quotation:
£0 – £9,999 £24,999 Approved Officer using designated Financial 

System *
£10,000 - £49,999 
£25,000 - £99,999 

Approved Officer with informal written 
acceptance from relevant Cabinet Member and 
/or Leader of the Council *

£50,000 – £499,999
£100,000 - £499,999

Formal democratic decision by the relevant 
Cabinet Member and the Leader of the Council 
or Cabinet Member for  Finance *

£500,000 or greater Formal democratic decision by the Cabinet */**

(b) * Any tender, at any value, if deemed a 'key decision', must be indicated on 
the Forward Plan in advance and determined formally
If any such decision on any tender is to have a significant impact upon 
communities, people or services within 2 or more wards and/or 
significantly outside the approved budget (by meeting the criteria for key 
decisions) then it must be taken by Leader & relevant Cabinet Member or 
the Cabinet, dependent on value as a formal democratic decision and prior 
details included within the Council's Forward Plan, except if taken under 
urgency rules. The Council's definition of a key decision is set out in Article 
7.

(c) ** Tenders above £500,000 in the absence of a regular Cabinet meeting 
and if decision deemed urgent by the Leader of the Council
Cabinet is the primary body where tenders over £500k in value are 
considered in the ordinary course of events. In the absence of a Cabinet 
meeting where a decision is required that if not taken may prejudice 
service or project delivery or if a decision is deemed urgent by the Leader 
of the Council, then the Leader of the Council and relevant Cabinet 
Member may take a formal democratic decision on the matter, with it being 
reported to a subsequent Cabinet for ratification via a formal report. 

(d) These thresholds and authority requirements shall also apply to single 
tender actions, contract extensions and variations.

(e) In the case of a formal democratic decision required by the Leader of the 
Council / Cabinet Member or the Cabinet then the procedures in Standing 
Order 3.3 shall be followed. 

Page 51



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

6.4 Agency / Temporary Workers and Consultants

Council has agreed different financial thresholds for authority for appointing 
individual temporary workers and accepting assignments or tenders for 
appointment of consultants as follows:

Less than £5000 Corporate Director In writing

£5000 - £50,000 Formal approval by 
the Cabinet Member

ReportAcceptance of 
tender for 
appointment of 
consultants

£50,000 or 
greater

Formal approval by 
the Cabinet Report

Less than £5000 Corporate Director In writing

£5000 and 
£50,000

Cabinet Member 
(informal approval via 
HR and Director)

Report 
Approval of 
individual 
temporary 
workers

Over £50,000 Formal approval by 
the Cabinet Report

Any value if 
within 
establishment 
and budget

Corporate 
Director In writing

Acceptance of 
tender for 
appointment of 
consultants *

Any value 
outside 
establishment or 
budget

Chief Executive 
with sign-off by 
the Leader of 
the Council

In writing

Any value if 
within 
establishment 
and budget

Corporate 
Director In writingApproval of 

individual 
temporary 
workers *

Any value 
outside 
establishment or 
budget

Chief Executive 
with sign-off by 
the Leader of 
the Council

In writing

 NB: If the value is £50,000 or greater these shall be reported to Cabinet 
for noting only.

Reference to ‘consultants’ within Standing Order 6.4 
means small practice consultants of fewer than 3 people who are 
engaged by the Council against a specific brief but are assessed to fall 
outside of IR35 intermediaries Legislation. For engagement of larger 
consultancy contracts, these should be tendered in accordance with 
Standing Order 4 and approved in accordance with Standing Order 6. In 
circumstance where there is uncertainty around which process to follow 
further guidance should be sought from the Head of Procurement.

In the case of decisions required by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member then the 
procedures in Standing Order 3.3 shall also be followed.

Page 52



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

6.5 Where individual orders for goods, works or services are placed with a single 
contractor independently of each other and the cumulative value over the 
period of a financial year moves between the authorisation levels in Standing 
Orders 6.3, officers should seek the necessary approval in accordance with 
the total cumulative value.

Standing Order 7

Execution of Contracts

7.1 Every contract that is entered into by the Council shall be in writing and 
executed in accordance with the following:-

£10,000 – 
£49,999

Signed by, the Head of Procurement in writing. 

As set out in 9.2 for purchases below £1,000 £10,000 
where no formal contract is in place, purchase orders 
shall be considered as a form of contract.

£50,000 - 
£99,999

Signed by the Chief Finance Officer in writing

£100,000 or 
greater

Sealed with the Common Seal of the Council and 
attested by a Member of the Council and the Borough 
Solicitor or any other officer authorised by the Borough 
Solicitor and the Leader of the Council in writing.

7.2 Pursuant to Standing Order 1, a record of each contract executed in 
accordance with paragraph 7.1, shall be entered on a Register of Contracts 
maintained for that purpose by the Head of Procurement.

7.3 No Council officer may call off a contract for goods, works or services unless 
that contract is in writing and executed in accordance with paragraph 7.1.

7.4 Legal Services shall be responsible for ensuring that all contract executions 
are managed correctly, in accordance with paragraph 7.1.  Sufficient copies of 
each contract shall be signed, and an electronic version will be passed to the 
Procurement Team, whereupon this will be stored in the Contracts Library.

Standing Order 9

Purchase Orders & Government Procurement Cards

9.1 Where formal contractual arrangement are in place, purchase orders shall be 
considered as the method of commitment with a supplier and shall be required 
for all goods, works and services, irrespective of value, and raised in 
accordance with Procurement Standard Operating Procedures, pursuant to 
paragraph 1.1. No goods, works or services shall be procured without the prior 
establishment of a legitimate purchase order, duly approved in accordance 
with the Council’s Financial Regulations and the Scheme of Delegations.

Exemptions to this shall be approved in writing by the Chief Finance Officer 
and Head of Procurement as appropriate.

Page 53



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

9.2 For purchases below £1000 £10,000 where no formal contract is in place, 
purchase orders shall be considered as a form of contract and shall be 
required for all goods, works and services, and raised in accordance with 
Procurement Standard Operating Procedures, pursuant to paragraph 1.1. No 
goods, works or services shall be procured without the prior establishment of a 
legitimate purchase order, duly approved in accordance with the Council’s 
Financial regulations and the Scheme of Delegations.

Exemptions to this shall be approved in writing by the Chief Finance Officer 
and Head of Procurement as appropriate.

9.3 The Council recognises the need to ensure efficient processes are used to 
procure lower value goods, works and services. Therefore Government 
Procurement Cards may be used to procure goods, works and services as 
follows:-
a) Purchases less than £500
b) Single purchases where the supplier will not be used again
c) Urgent or emergency purchases where it is not possible to raise a 

purchase order, pursuant to paragraph 9.2

Exemptions to this shall be approved in writing by the Chief Finance Officer 
and Head of Procurement as appropriate.

Page 54



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

PART 7 - MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Preamble

1. The Council consists of 5 Departments (Directorates) headed by a 
Corporate Director:
(a) Finance
(b) Corporate Services & Transformation
(c) Social Care & Health
(d) Infrastructure, Transport & Building Services
(e) Planning, Environment, Education & Community Services

2. These officers, together with the Chief Executive, come together to form 
the top officer tier in the Council, which is called the Corporate 
Management Team, working closely with the Leader and Cabinet.  

3. The Council’s departmental structure is shown below:

Page 55



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Appendix 2

Article 8 – 8.02 PLANNING COMMITTEES TERMS OF REFERENCE

To alter the reference to membership of Committees to refer to ‘two’ rather than 
‘three’ politically balanced Committees. This would mean removing the word ‘any’ 
from the terms of reference where highlighted in bold below:

8.02 Planning Committees

(a) Introduction

The Council has two area based Planning Committees. The Central and South 
Committee which covers the Hayes and Harlington, Heathrow and Uxbridge 
area and the North Committee which covers the Ruislip and Northwood area. 
The Council has a Minor Applications Planning Committee which 
determines smaller scale planning applications and In addition the Council 
has a Major Applications Committee which determines major planning 
applications or matters in relation to High Speed 2 (HS2).

(b) Membership

Each of the three Planning Committees has 7 Members and they will be 
politically balanced. The Major Applications Committee may establish a Sub-
Committee to consider HS2 matters which will consist of seven Members and 
all Members of the existing Planning Committees are eligible for membership 
(and substitutes) of the Sub-Committee.

(c) Terms of Reference

Each of the Planning Committees exercise the following functions:

1. To determine any applications made under the provisions of the Town 
and Country Planning Legislation and Orders.

2. To approve directions restricting permitted development rights.
3. To confirm and modify Tree Preservation Orders where objections have 

been received.
4. To approve highway schemes where required as part of a planning 

application.
5. To authorise any legal agreements required in respect of any planning 

applications.
6. To authorise the service of stop notices under Planning legislation.
7. To authorise the making, issue and service of any notices, orders and 

other documents under the town and country planning and listed 
buildings legislation.

8. To authorise the institution of any legal proceedings in respect of any 
notices orders and other documents made, issued and served under the 
town and country planning and listed buildings legislation.

9. To authorise the institution of legal proceedings to seek injunctive relief 
under the town and country planning and listed building legislation.

Page 56



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

(c) Minor Applications Planning Committee

The Minor Applications Planning Committee will determine all applications 
which are not required to be referred to the Major Applications Planning 
Committee and which cannot be determined under delegated authority by 
officers.

(d)   Major Applications Planning Committee

The Major Applications Committee will determine major planning applications that 
involve:

1. the creation of 10 or more residential units.
2. residential development on a site of 0.5 hectares or more
3. non-residential development on a site of at least 1 hectare
4. non-residential development that creates more than 1000 square metres 

of new gross floorspace
5. the creation of a change of use of 1000 square metres or more of gross 

floor space (not including housing)
6. Council owned development sites / applications where the Council is the 

applicant.
7. applications in respect of High Speed 2 (HS2) under the following 

schedules of the High Speed 2 Act:
(i) Schedule 17(2) – Condition relating to building works: Where 

footprint is above 500m2
(ii) Schedule 17(6) – Condition relating to road transport 

proposals for the movement of large goods vehicles (over 7.5 
tonnes) of more than 24 movements a day (12 in, 12 out).

(iii) Schedule 17(9) – Conditions on bringing scheduled works 
and depots into use where the scheduled work is more than 
500m2 

(iv) Proposals under Schedule 17(3) Table: (2):  Earthworks - 
where the works involve land of more than 1 hectare

(v) Schedule 17(12) – Condition relating to site restoration where 
the proposals affecting an area of more than 1 hectare

Note:

All other Schedule 17 applications and Schedule 16[5] [land 
restoration schemes] applications from HS2 Ltd to the London 
Borough of Hillingdon requiring approval are delegated to the 
Deputy Director of Planning and Regeneration in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing & Regeneration as 
set out in Part 3 – Scheme of Delegations to Officers

The Committee also determines the following applications in respect of High 
Speed 2 (HS2) and may establish a Sub-Committee to consider these:

1. To approve the detail design of works.
2. To control and enforce construction arrangements and works.
3. To determine restoration schemes.

Page 57



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

4. To determine and if necessary impose conditions in relation to the 
bringing into use of any scheduled work or depot.

5. To consider and if necessary determine any matters arising out of context 
reports submitted by HS2 Ltd.

6. To authorise enforcement action to be taken where it is considered to be 
expedient to do so.

7. To determine any other matter arising under Schedule 17 of the High 
Speed Rail [London - West Midlands] Act 2017 where HS2 Ltd require the 
Council's consent or approval.

Additionally The Head of Planning, Transportation & Regeneration, Deputy 
Director of Planning and Regeneration in consultation with the appropriate 
Cabinet Member, may refer applications which by virtue of the level of public 
interest or by virtue of the economic / regeneration benefits of the proposals 
are felt to warrant consideration at the Major Applications Committee.

SCHEDULE OF MATTERS WHICH WILL BE REPORTED TO COMMITTEE FOR 
DETERMINATION (subject to the exceptions contained in the schedule of matters 
which will not be reported to Committee.

a) Applications for which petitions of 20 or more signatures or 20 or more separate 
written responses have been received.

b) Authorisation and issue of Enforcement Notices and Breach of Condition Notices 
under the Town and Country Planning Act & Planning and Compensation Act.   

c) b) Any application where a Ward Councillor requests, in writing to the Head of 
Planning, Transportation & Regeneration within 21 days of the publication of the 
relevant weekly list of applications received by the Council, that it be determined by 
a Committee. The Ward Councillor must include in their request the valid planning 
reasons why they wish the application to be determined by Committee and their 
desired outcome for the application.

Determination of what constitutes a valid planning reason, and thus a valid referral, 
will be made by the Head of Planning, Transportation & Regeneration Deputy 
Director of Planning & Regeneration in consultation with the relevant Planning 
Committee Chairman. In exceptional circumstances, as determined by the Head of 
Planning, Transportation & Regeneration Deputy Director of Planning & 
Regeneration the 21 day rule may be waived.

NB: Should the desired outcome subsequently be in accord with the ‘Officer’s 
Recommendation’ then the application will not be referred to Committee.

d) c) Full Planning telecommunication mast applications where the statutory time 
constraints allow for determination.

e) d) Personal planning applications from Councillors, Chief Officers and officers directly 
involved in the processing of planning applications be referred to Committee 
(excludes certificates of existing and proposed lawful use).

Page 58



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

f) e) Sites where enforcement action has been taken agreed by Committee and where 
the development that is the subject of the planning application, relates directly to 
the subject of the enforcement action agreed by Committee.

g) f) Determination of minor applications in the green belt at Brunel University, 
Harefield hospital and Mount Vernon hospital of over 1000sq.m floorspace 
and determination of minor applications on other sites in the green belt where 
the floorspace is more than 200sq.m.

Additionally, applications in the following categories shall be reported to Committee 
for determination but only where the officer recommendation is for approval:
a) Dwellings – 10 or more dwellings or site of 0.5 hectares or more.
b) Offices/research and development/light industry – 1000 square metres of floor 

space or more.
c) Heavy industry/storage/warehousing – 1000 square metres of floor space or more 

or site area of over 1 hectare.
d) Retail distribution and servicing – 1000 square metres of floor space or more or site 

area of 1 hectare or more.
e) All other major development – 1000 square metres of floor space or more or site 

area of 1 hectare or more.
f) Major aviation development leading to a major quantifiable increase in capacity.
g) All departures from the development plan.
h) Applications on Green Belt land, apart from Householder applications.
i) h) Development affecting listed buildings and their settings, other than minor 

applications as defined by NI 157 (b) and (c) where there is a connected planning 
application that is capable of being determined by officers under delegated 
authority.

j) i) Advertisement poster panels of 16-sheet size and above.
k) j) Permission in Principle applications, but only where the statutory time constraints 

allow for determination by Committee.
k) Changes of use to a proposed sui generis use.

SCHEDULE OF MATTERS WHICH WILL NOT BE REPORTED TO COMMITTEE FOR 
DETERMINATION

a) Existing and proposed certificates of lawful use and reporting to Committee on such 
decisions for information on a regular basis.

b) All applications to which 42 day or 56 day prior approval constraints apply cannot 
be referred to Planning Committee unless:
(i) where time constraints allow a Committee referral and they exceed 10 units or 

1000 sq.m floorspace and are recommended for approval.
(ii) where time constraints allow a Committee referral and a valid petition has 

been received and the officer recommendation is contrary to that requested by 
the petitioners.

(iii) where time constraints allow a Committee referral and 20 or more individual 
representations in support or objection are received.

This is subject to the following proviso:

Where a petition is received and the officer recommendation aligns with that of the 
petitioners, or where the above criteria apply but time constraints do not allow a 

Page 59



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Committee referral, the Head of Planning should refer the conditions imposed or 
recommended refusal reasons to the Chairman of the relevant Area Planning 
Committee and Labour lead, for their comment prior to a decision being issued.

c) Where a petition has been received requesting refusal of a householder 
application and where the officer recommendation is to refuse consent and 
the reasons for refusal align with those requested by the petition.

PART 3 – OFFICER SCHEME OF DELEGATIONS – CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF 
PLANNING, ENVIRONMENT, EDUCATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES

Delegated to the Head of Planning, Transportation & Regeneration Deputy Director of 
Planning and Regeneration in accordance with S101 of the Local Government Act 1972.  
Also sub-delegated to Planning Services Manager (as of 28/2/2012 onwards).

1. Determination of applications as to whether planning permission is required.
2. Determination of applications for Certificates of Lawfulness for existing use or 

Development. 
3. Determination of applications for single dwellings and housing developments of 

less than 10 dwellings or where the site area is less than 0.5 hectares and the 
number of dwellings is not specified.

4. Determination of applications for changes of use of retail units, apart from those 
involving a loss of A1 uses. Determination of change of use applications 
except for those involving approval of a proposed sui generis use.

5. Determination of applications for changes of use of industrial units apart from 
changes to retail uses. 

6. Determination of Householder applications in the Green Belt. 
7. Determination of minor applications in the green belt at Brunel University, 

Harefield hospital and Mount Vernon hospital of upto 1000sq.m floorspace 
and determination of minor applications on other sites in the green belt 
where the floorspace is less than 200sq.m.

8. Approval of any application or consent not included in the attached schedule and 
which does not conflict with any planning policies, which is acceptable on planning 
grounds, where no valid planning objection has been received in the form of a 
petition of 20 or more signatures or 20 or more separate written responses, or 
where a Ward Councillor has not requested it to be reported to Committee for 
decision.

9. Refusal of any application or consent which conflicts with any planning policies, 
which is not acceptable on planning grounds and where no valid planning 
objection has been received in the form of a petition of 20 or more signatures or 
20 or more separate written responses, or where a Ward Councillor has not 
requested it to be reported to Committee for decision.

8. Approval of details required by conditions imposed on the granting of planning 
permission and where there are no objections. 

9. Determination of applications under the Copsewood Covenant. 
10. Determination of applications for Certificates of Appropriate Alternative 

Development. 
11. Determination of any application under the appropriate Town and Country 

Planning General Regulations for Council development which satisfy any of the 
above delegated powers.

12. Approval of responses to proposals which would have fallen within delegation 
arrangements if a planning application had been required, i.e. applications under 

Page 60



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Circular 18/84, consultations on applications submitted to neighbouring planning 
authorities and applications for determination as to whether prior approval is 
required under the General Development Order. 

13. Approval of ancillary planning agreements and determination of related planning 
applications, subject to the approval of the relevant Planning Committee of the 
main heads of terms (excluding Section 73 applications where no increase in 
residential units or floorspace are proposed and deeds of variations to S106 
legal agreements where there is no reduction in the level of affordable 
housing or monetary sums to be paid to the Council).

14. Authorisation of planning and highways agreements where it is considered 
appropriate to secure a particular objective, and which would not conflict with any 
of the Council’s planning policies. 

15. The entering of land within the Borough for any purpose or purposes required in 
connection with the exercise of any statutory planning function. 

16. The issue of Planning Contravention Notices.
17. The issue of Temporary Stop Notices and Stop Notices
18. The issue of S215, breach of condition and planning enforcement notices 

and to communicate these to Ward Councillors weekly in an appropriate 
manner.

19. Authorisation and issue of Enforcement Notices in connection with Tree 
Preservation Orders. 

20. Serving of Tree Preservation Orders made in respect of the borough’s privately 
owned trees in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act and 
government guidance. 

21. Determination of applications for work to trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders 
in the case of: subsidence, Article 5 Directions, alleged danger, and cases dealt 
with by the Principal Trees and Landscape Officer.  All other TPO applications to 
be determined by the manager of the Planning Specialists Team (Management 
Level C).

22. Action requiring the removal or obliteration of un-authorised advertisements.
23. Serving of building preservation notices.
24. Responses to consultations on plans and policies of local authorities and other 

bodies which do not conflict with existing council policies. 
25. To authorise the making, issue and service of any notices, orders and other 

documents under the town and country planning and listed buildings legislation.
26. To authorise the institution of any legal proceedings in respect of any notices 

orders and other documents made, issued and served under the town and country 
planning and listed buildings legislation.

27. To authorise the institution of legal proceedings to seek injunctive relief under the 
town and country planning and listed buildings legislation.

28. To determine minor applications for development affecting listed buildings and 
their settings, as defined by NI157 b and c, and where there is a connected 
planning application that is capable of being determined by officers under 
delegated authority.

29. To determine telecommunication mast applications where the statutory time 
constraints do not allow for determination by the relevant Planning Committee, in 
consultation with the relevant Chairman of the Planning Committee and Party 
Lead.

30. To determine non-material amendments to planning applications.
31. That where a planning application has been refused and is appealed and upheld, 

to agree the heads of terms of any associated S106 agreement/ Unilateral 

Page 61



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

undertaking. This is provided the S106 agreement/unilateral undertaking covers all 
the planning obligations identified in the decision notice for the refused application.

32. Section 73 applications where no increase in residential units or floorspace 
are proposed.

33. To approve deeds of variations to S106 legal agreements where there is no 
reduction in the level of affordable housing or monetary sums to be paid to 
the Council.

HS2 OFFICER DELEGATIONS

In relation to High Speed 2 (HS2) to make the following decisions in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling: Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Housing and Regeneration.

Highways

(a) to determine whether approval should be given in relation to the following matters:
 access to highways affecting traffic
 stopping up, diversion and interference with a highway
 details of works affecting highways
 trial holes in a carriageway or footway

(b) to take all necessary steps in relation to the making of a traffic regulation order 
under Schedule 25 of the High Speed Rail [London - West Midlands] Act 2017.

The Transport and Aviation & Town Centres Manager is authorised to exercise the above 
delegations in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning Transportation and 
Recycling Cabinet Member for Public Safety and Transport.

Heritage

(c) To approve Heritage Method Statements relating to works to listed buildings 
authorised to be demolished, altered or extended and also for any such works for 
heritage or monitoring purposes under Schedule 18 of the High Speed Rail [London 
- West Midlands] Act 2017.

The Planning Specialists Manager is authorised to exercise the above delegation in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Planning Transportation and Recycling Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Housing and Regeneration.

Waterways, land drainage, flood defence, water discharge

(d) To take all necessary steps in relation to any proposals or applications submitted by 
HS2 Ltd in relation to the construction of any works affecting drainage, flood 
storage and flood defence, the flow or purity of water and conservation of water 
resources arising under Schedule 33 of the High Speed Rail [London - West 
Midlands] Act 2017.

The Flood and Water Management Specialist is authorised to exercise the above 
delegation in consultation with the. Cabinet Member for Planning Transportation and 
Recycling Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing and Regeneration.

Page 62



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Control of Noise Generated by Construction Works

(e) To determine whether consent should be given under Section 61 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974.

The Anti-Social Behaviour and Enforcement Protection Manager Planning Specialists 
Manager is authorised to exercise the above delegation in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Planning Transportation and Recycling Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Housing and Regeneration.

Planning

(f) To agree minor changes to planning approvals already given to HS2 Ltd.

The Head of Planning, Transportation & Regeneration The Deputy Director of Planning 
and Regeneration is authorised to exercise the above delegation and to agree all minor 
changes to planning approvals already given to HS2 Ltd, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Planning Transportation and Recycling. Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Housing and Regeneration.

Other Schedule 17 applications and Schedule 16[5] [land restoration schemes] 
applications

(g) To agree all other Schedule 17 applications and Schedule 16[5] [land 
restoration schemes] applications from HS2 Ltd to the London Borough of 
Hillingdon not delegated to the Major Applications Planning Committee.

The Deputy Director of Planning and Regeneration is authorised to exercise the 
above delegation and make decisions in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Housing and Regeneration.

Important Note: Delegated decisions to the Corporate Director of Planning, 
Environment, Education and Community Services to the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Corporate Director of Residents Services in relation to HS2 are executive in nature (i.e. 
Cabinet/Cabinet Member). As such, the Leader of the Council may determine which are 
reported to Cabinet for decision under his formal delegations in the Constitution.

Page 63



Annual Council – 20 May 2021

Appendix 3

2021/22 Programme of Meetings 2021 2022
MEETING (and start time) May June July Aug’ Sept’ Oct’ Nov’ Dec’ Jan’ Feb’ Mar’ April May
Council (7.30pm) (*AGM) 20  15  9  18  13 24   12
Whips Meeting (5pm)   13  7  16  11 22    
Cabinet (7pm) 27 17 8  2 14 11 16 6 17 24 21 19
Petition Hearings - Cabinet Member for Public 
Safety and Transport (7pm)  2 14 11 1 20 3 8 5 9 9 13 11

Petition Hearings - Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Housing and Regeneration (7pm)  9   30  10  4  23   

Minor Applications Planning Committee (7pm)  22 13 4 1,30  2 7 11 15 10 6 10
Major Applications Planning Committee (7pm)  24 21 18 16 14 16 15 19 23 29 26 18
Pensions Committee (5pm)  10   28   1   23   
Audit Committee (5.10pm)   29  29  9   1  28  
Health & Wellbeing Board (2.30pm)  15   14  30    8   
Licensing Committee (10am)   7   5   26   5  
Licensing Sub-Committee (10am) (dates tbc)              
Public Safety and Transport Select Committee 
(7pm)  9 27  21 19 17  18 10 8 7  

Families, Health and Wellbeing Select 
Committee (7pm)  3 27  8 26 30  4 2 31 19  

Corporate Parenting Panel (5.30pm) 27  1  7  24  25  3  25
Environment, Housing and Regeneration Select 
Committee (7pm)  8 22  14 13 25  20 16 16 14  

Corporate, Finance and Property Select 
Committee (7.30pm)  3 6  7 12 24  12 2 2 20  

External Services Select Committee (6.30pm)  16 20  15 7 23  27 22 22 27  
Standards Committee (7pm)  30   1   7   1   
Hillingdon SACRE (5.30pm)  17     4    29   

NB: Meetings of Registration & Appeals Cttee and Petition Hearings with other Cabinet Members are dates & times tbc.

P
age 64



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2021/2022 
 

Annual Council – 20 May 2021 

ORDINARY COMMITTEES 
 

EXTERNAL SERVICES SELECT COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Denys (Proposed Chairman) Money (Lead)  
Radia (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Nelson 
Arnold 
Davies 
Makwana 

 
FAMILIES, HEALTH AND WELLBEING SELECT COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Corthorne (Proposed Chairman) Prince (Lead)  
Makwana (Proposed Vice-
Chairman) Sweeting 

Cooper 
Haggar 
Rodrigues 

 
Other Voting Members (for education related items only): 
Parent Governor (3) Vacant 
Church of England Diocesan Representative Vacant 
Roman Catholic Diocesan representative Anthony Little 

 
ENVIRONMENT, HOUSING AND REGENERATION SELECT COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Bridges (Proposed Chairman) Farley (Lead)  
Chapman (Proposed Vice-
Chairman) Gardner 

Brightman 
Deville 
Kauffman 

 
PUBLIC SAFETY & TRANSPORT SELECT COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Burrows (Proposed Chairman) Sweeting (Lead)  
Barnes (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Lakhmana 
Lewis 
Sullivan 
Tuckwell 

 
CORPORATE, FINANCE & PROPERTY SELECT COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
R.Mills (Proposed Chairman) Eginton (Lead)  
Hurhangee (Proposed Vice-
Chairman) Bliss 

Choubedar 
Graham 
Lewis 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2021/2022 
 

Annual Council – 20 May 2021 

SUBSTITUTES FOR SCRUTINY AND POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEES ARE ALL 
COUNCILLORS EXCEPT THOSE IN THE CABINET 
 
MAJOR APPLICATION PLANNING COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Tuckwell (Proposed Chairman) Duncan (Lead)  
Higgins (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Dhot 
Chapman 
Corthorne 
Yarrow 

 
MINOR APPLICATIONS PLANNING COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Higgins (Proposed Chairman) Morse (Lead)  
Morgan (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Birah 
Ahmad-Wallana 
Brightman 
Kauffman 

 
(ALL PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ALL THAT HAVE RECEIVED APPROPRIATE 
PLANNING TRAINING TO BE SUBSTITUTES FOR BOTH COMMITTEES) 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE: 5 (3-2) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Goddard (Proposed Chairman) Morse (Lead) 
Flynn (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Sansarpuri 
Melvin  
Substitutes Substitutes 
Hensley Eginton 
Markham 

 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE: 7 (4-3) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Edwards (Proposed Chairman) Curling (Lead) 
Bianco (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Dhillon 
Goddard Mathers 
D.Mills 
Substitutes Substitutes 
All remaining Cabinet members Farley 
 Prince 
 Sweeting 

 
 

Page 66



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2021/2022 
 

Annual Council – 20 May 2021 

REGISTRATION & APPEALS COMMITTEE: 7 (4-3) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Flynn (Proposed Chairman) Dhot (Lead) 
R.Mills (Proposed Vice-Chairman) Allen 
Bridges Sansarpuri 
Denys 
Substitutes Substitutes 
All Cabinet members All Labour Members except 
  Group Leader, Deputy Leader 
  and Chief Whip 

 
SUBSTITUTES ON THIS COMMITTEE MAY COMPRISE CABINET MEMBERS FOR THE 
PURPOSES OF BEING MEMBERS OR SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS OF THE THREE SUB-
COMMITTEES, BUT NO CABINET MEMBERS SHOULD SIT AS MEMBERS OF THE MAIN 
REGISTRATION AND APPEALS COMMITTEE 
 

*********************************** 
 
OTHER COMMITTEES / PANELS (OUTSIDE THE OVERALL CALCULATION BUT 
ALLOCATED ON THE BASIS OF OVERALL POLITICAL BALANCE 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Riley (Proposed Chairman) Dhillon (Lead) 
Denys (Proposed Vice-Chairman)  
Bridges 
Substitutes  Substitutes 
R.Mills Duncan 

 
Non-voting Independent Person: 
Mr David Smith 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
Independent Member: 
John Chesshire (Chairman) 

 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Flynn (Proposed Vice Chairman) Eginton (Lead) 
Graham 
Morgan 
Substitutes Substitutes 
R.Mills Morse 
R.Lewis  

 
NO MEMBER OF CABINET MAY SIT ON AUDIT COMMITTEE. 
 

Page 67



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2021/2022 
 

Annual Council – 20 May 2021 

LICENSING COMMITTEE: 10 (7-3) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Arnold (Chairman)  Allen (Lead) 
Chapman (Vice-Chairman)  Gardner 
Davies Morse 
Graham  
Hensley 
Melvin 
Sullivan 

N.B. NO SUBSTITUTES ALLOWED FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (2-1) 
The sub-committee to comprise three Members of the Licensing Committee (2 Conservative and 
1 Labour) selected on a rota basis from the membership of the Licensing Committee. Meetings of 
the Sub-Committee must be chaired by either the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Licensing 
Committee. 
 
APPOINTMENTS SUB COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Bianco Curling (Lead) 
Edwards 
D.Mills 
Substitutes Substitutes 
All remaining Cabinet members Dhillon 
 Mathers 

 
INVESTIGATING AND DISCIPLINARY SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 

CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 
Bianco Curling (Lead) 
Edwards 
D.Mills 
Substitutes Substitutes 
All remaining Cabinet members Dhillon 
 Mathers 
 Prince 
 Sweeting 

 
APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Membership to be appointed by Group Leaders as required. 
 
GRIEVANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1) 
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR 

Membership to be appointed by Group Leaders as required. 
 
 

Page 68



COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 2021/2022 
 

Annual Council – 20 May 2021 

 
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: Outside of the overall calculation and subject to the 
Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 
2013. 

 

Organisation Name of Member Substitute 

STATUTORY MEMBERS (VOTING) 
Chairman Councillor Palmer Any Elected Member 

Vice-Chairman Councillor O’Brien Any Elected Member 

Members 

Councillor Bianco Any Elected Member 
Councillor Edwards Any Elected Member 
Councillor Goddard Any Elected Member 
Councillor Lavery Any Elected Member 
Councillor D Mills Any Elected Member 
Councillor Riley Any Elected Member 

Healthwatch Hillingdon Ms Lynn Hill Mr Turkay Mahmood 

Clinical Commissioning Group Dr Ian Goodman Dr Kuldhir Johal 
For information Membership also includes: 
STATUTORY MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) 

Statutory Director of Adult Social 
Services Mr Tony Zaman Ms Sandra Taylor 

Statutory Director of Children’s 
Services Mr Tony Zaman Ms Sandra Taylor 

Statutory Director of Public Health VACANCY Ms Sharon Daye 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING) 
The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust Ms Patricia Wright Mr Jason Seez 

Central and North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust Ms Robyn Doran Mr Graeme Caul 

Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS 
Foundation Trust Mr Robert J Bell Mr Nick Hunt 

LBH Mr Dan Kennedy N/A 

Clinical Commissioning Group (1) Ms Sarah Crowther Dr Kuldhir Johal 

Clinical Commissioning Group (2) Mr Sheikh Auladin  Mr Richard Ellis /  
Ms Sue Jeffers 

Hillingdon Health and Care Partners Ms Caroline Morison N/A 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
in Hillingdon 

 
 

Annual Report to Council - 2020 / 2021

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



  Introduction  
 
This has been an extraordinary year for overview and scrutiny in 
Hillingdon due to the COVID-19 global pandemic. Councillors on the 
committees have adapted well to operating virtually and importantly, 
have continued to perform their key role of monitoring, and 
reviewing council and external services in the best interests of 
Hillingdon residents. 

 
Despite a slightly shorter municipal year of meetings, not 
commencing formally until September 2020, committees have 
certainly made up for this time in their work programmes. Reviews 
undertaken have received excellent witness participation throughout 
and committees have also re-prioritised their activity to better 
understand how the pandemic has, and will, impact on areas within 
their remit, along with what lessons and opportunities seen during 
the pandemic can bring to the provision of local services in the 
future. 

 
This annual report provides an opportunity to note the activity and 
achievements of overview and scrutiny in Hillingdon during the 
2020/21 Municipal Year. This is a statutory, vital part of the Council’s 
non-executive governance arrangements. 

Page 72



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 Overview and scrutiny arrangements 2020/21  
Overview and scrutiny in Hillingdon comprise three Policy 
Overview Committees (POCs) which are responsible for 
monitoring council services and recommending changes to 
Cabinet on a range of areas to shape future policy direction. In 
addition, there is an Executive Scrutiny Committee, which is 
responsible for post Cabinet and Cabinet Member decision 
scrutiny and the statutory call-in procedure. The final, yet a key 
arm of these arrangements, is the External Services Select 
Committee. This Committee is responsible for holding to 
account and reviewing those services provided by other public 
agencies, primarily the local NHS and Police services. 

 
All committees undertake their role through a multi-year work 
programme of activities which may include single meeting or 
in-depth policy reviews on specific topics of community and 
resident importance. These reviews provide the opportunity to 
directly engage with resident stakeholders, local interest 
groups and experts to help shape local public services in 
Hillingdon. 

 
Committees also monitor the performance of local services and can request information and reports on matters of resident interest, often through 
the valuable insight of local councillors in their wards. Committees provide regular comment on reports to Cabinet for decision and input into 
Cabinet’s annual budget proposals before they are approved by Council each year. These Committees, therefore, play a vital role in ensuring that 
the Council continues to provide high quality, value-for-money services, putting Hillingdon residents first. 

 
Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, Policy Overview Committees can consider 'Councillor Calls For Action' 
submissions. These powers enable all Councillors to ask for discussions at POCs on issues where local problems have arisen and other methods 
of resolution have been exhausted. No such Calls for Actions have been requested and thereby considered during 2019/20. 

P
age 73



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Key corporate parenting responsibilities of Elected Councillors are an integral part within Hillingdon’s overview and scrutiny arrangements. The 
Corporate Parenting Panel actively engages young people in the development of council services with a direct line to the decision-making Cabinet. 

 
Following the publication of Statutory Scrutiny Guidance in 2019, Councillors further reviewed the overview and scrutiny arrangements and adopted 
a new Protocol on Scrutiny & Cabinet relations. The Statutory Scrutiny Officer can report there has been compliance with this protocol during the 
2020/21 Municipal Year. 

 
The Council’s overview and scrutiny structure is shown on the right of this page and is part Hillingdon’s strong political governance of the Borough. 
This Annual Report demonstrates the breadth of work undertaken by Elected Councillors engaged in overview and scrutiny during 2020/21. On 
behalf of the Committee Chairmen, it is commended to Council on 20 May 2021. 

P
age 74



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

REVIEWED: The Voluntary Sector Response to the 
Covid-19 Pandemic 

‘Voluntary Sector Response to Covid-19, Anti-Social Behaviour in 
Lockdown and Climate Change’ 

 
 

 The work of the Corporate Services, Commerce & Communities Policy Overview Committee  
 
 

 

 
Our remit 

 
Councillors: 

 
Richard Mills (Chairman) 
Vanessa Hurhangee (Vice-Chairman) 
Wayne Bridges 
Nicola Brightman 
Farhad Choubedar 
Alan Deville 
Jazz Dhillon (Opposition Lead) 
Lindsay Bliss 
Scott Farley 

 
Lead Officer: Liz Penny, Democratic Services 

creation, equalities, energy use and carbon reduction, public safety, 
civil protection and community safety. 

 
In 2020, the Committee was given a new monitoring responsibility on 
the Council’s efforts to tackle climate change. 

 
The Committee has undertaken one in-depth review this year and has 
also monitored several service areas. This is summarised below. 

 

 
This review investigated the voluntary and community sector’s (VCS) 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic and enabled the Committee to 
gain a better understanding of the challenges faced and how the 
sector was able to work effectively and proactively in collaboration with 

The Committee is responsible for the policy overview role for a broad 
array of Council services, provided mainly by the Council’s Chief 
Executive’s Office and Finance Directorate. These include strategic 
internal functions, such as finance, property, partnerships, human 
resources, democratic services, legal services, ICT, and economic 
development. Further responsibilities also include localism, 
enforcement, community engagement, local commerce and job 

the Council to meet the needs of residents. It was recognised that a 
coordinated response was essential to protect the most vulnerable 
residents in the Borough. 

 
The VCS was at the forefront of responding to the emerging and 
changing demands of the Covid-19 pandemic and was well placed to 
pick up issues on the ground and provide support. The sector was also 
impacted directly and had to adjust and transform to enable it to 

P
age 75



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

continue to support residents effectively. 
 

At the outset of the pandemic, the Council established the Hillingdon 
Community Hub in collaboration with Hillingdon 4 All (H4All) - the local 
consortium which brings together five of the main local charities 
(AgeUKHHB, Hillingdon Carers Trust, Harlington Hospice, Hillingdon 
MIND and DASH). The Hub was widely promoted as the place to call 
in event of urgent need, should residents be required to shield or 
isolate. Emergency food became one of the main requests and the 
hub responded quickly with a bespoke paid-for shopping service, and 
with emergency food parcels, co-ordinated by the Council’s Business 
Assurance Team. The Borough’s foodbanks, faith groups and 
voluntary organisations also helped during the pandemic, distributing 
food and prescriptions and offering “befriending” calls. 

 
As lockdown requirements changed, the Council worked closely with 
the two main established foodbanks in Hillingdon - the Hillingdon 

Foodbank and the UB7 Foodbank - to support them in taking referrals 
from the Hub. This allowed the emergency food distribution elements 
of the Community Hub to be reduced and moved to a more sustainable 
model. 

 
The review received evidence from a range of expert witnesses 
including representatives from Hillingdon Foodbank, UB7 Foodbank, 
Hillingdon MIND, Age UK and the Carers’ Trust. The witness sessions 
were well received by the Committee and provided invaluable 
information which helped to shape the review, along with the 
supporting information provided by Council officers. This evidence 
provided the Committee with insight into the challenges faced during 
the pandemic and enabled the Committee to gain a more thorough 
understanding of how the Council had worked effectively in 
collaboration with the voluntary sector to ensure a coordinated 
response. The Committee recognised that there would be ongoing 
challenges in the future, particularly in relation to mental health, and 
noted the importance of outbound communications to enable all 
residents to access information about key voluntary sector services 
available to them. 

 
This review is due to be presented to Cabinet in 2021. 

 MONITORING activity  

Annual Complaints Update 2019/20 
 

The Committee received a comprehensive report on Resident 
Complaints and Enquiries within its remit, noting the trends and 
providing appropriate feedback to officers. The Committee was 
informed that these numbers suggest the complaints procedure 
continues to work well. 

P
age 76



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Update on review into ‘Recruitment in Hillingdon’ 
 
The Committee was presented with an update on the implementation 
of the recommendations approved by Cabinet in the 2017 review into 
“Recruitment in Hillingdon”. 

 
The Committee heard that, further to the review, the Council was 
much better at differentiating what it meant to be working for 
Hillingdon. Professional workers in the business believed Hillingdon 
offered: accomplishment and achievement, a collective impact, 
working for a resourceful and progressive Council, a sense of 
diversity, and a support mechanism through management and an 
organisational culture that supported professional development. 

 
Members heard that there was now a much better level of candidate 
response, and the recruitment process was quicker following the 
implementation of the Committee’s recommendations. The 
Committee was also informed that the apprenticeship scheme was 
very successful and provided a pivotal talent pool with over 50% of 
apprentices staying and starting their professional careers at the 
Council. 

 
Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals 

 
As a statutory consultee to the Cabinet’s 2021/22 budget proposals 
published in December, the Committee reviewed and supported the 
proposals within its remit. The Committee also agreed a co-ordinated 
response on behalf of the other two Policy Overview Committees to 
Cabinet. During the year, the Committee also received an update on 
the 2020/21 budget. 

Alley Gating 
 
Members received an update on the Council’s Alley Gating Scheme 
noting that, within the Chrysalis programme, around £30k was 
earmarked each financial year to support alleygating and community 
safety schemes to enhance public safety. The private alleygating 
scheme had been introduced about 15 years previously and about 13 
schemes had been completed in total. Chrysalis funding contributed 
up to 90% of the cost of alley gates to successful applicants but 
responsibility for maintenance and ownership lay with the residents 
themselves. 

 
Each year gating schemes were implemented on Housing-owned land 
as part of the Better Neighbourhood Fund. £156k of Better 
Neighbourhood funding was available each year for improvements on 
LBH Housing-owned land, to benefit the wider community. For these 
schemes, keys were held by the Tenancy Management Officer. 

 
With regards to the Chrysalis scheme, the Committee was advised 
that, over the last 3 years, 23 applications had been received; 19 of 
which had been approved and 378 households had benefited. In terms 
of the Better Neighbourhood Fund Data, 14 alleygating schemes had 
been approved and 311 households had benefited. For private 
schemes, responsibility for ongoing maintenance lay with the 
residents themselves. Members observed that it was important that 
the Council kept accurate records and suggested that officers wrote 
to lead residents on a yearly basis to ensure contact details were 
correct and up to date. It was recognised that the matter of absentee 
landlords was a challenge and it was sometimes difficult to obtain alley 
gating contributions from households. 

P
age 77



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Anti-Social Behaviour in Lockdown 
 
The Committee received an update regarding Anti-Social Behaviour 
during lockdown. In terms of the response to the Covid-19 pandemic, 
Members heard that the ASBET team had been working in partnership 
with licensing and the police. A team of 4 dedicated officers with 
delegated powers had been working 12 hour shifts 7 days a week to 
enforce on the business front and the night-time economy, particularly 
in terms of breaches of social distancing and businesses not adhering 
to restrictions. The workload had increased significantly as more 
people were at home leading to increased noise levels, rubbish 
accumulation, misuse of communal areas and neighbourhood 
disputes. Members were pleased that the ASBET team had continued 
to deliver a service throughout the pandemic. 

 
Past Review Update: Local Policing Review 

 
The Committee received an update on its Local Policing Review. It 
was noted that the review recommendations had been approved by 
Cabinet in July 2019 and, since then, significant progress had been 
made. The original two police teams had now been amalgamated into 
one and during the pandemic, work had been done to deliver services 
more efficiently. 

 
In terms of CCTV, the service had been maintained 24/7 throughout 
the pandemic. ANPR cameras were in daily use throughout the 
Borough providing information on fly tipping, suspect vehicles etc. The 
priority going forward was to ensure the Council had ANPR cameras 
on all main arterial routes. There was a good flow of information into 
and out of the CCTV room and the Council had been able to help the 
police with information on some serious offences. 

 
The Committee heard that there was now only one Partnership 
Tasking team with one sergeant and 8 constables. Fortnightly tasking 

meetings with the sergeant in charge were held and departments such 
as Licensing, Planning, ASBET, Corporate Fraud and Tenancy 
Management were invited to attend. The tasking team had been ring- 
fenced to work exclusively in Hillingdon. 

 
Hillingdon First Limited 

 
The Committee received a report regarding Hillingdon First Limited 
which was the Council’s wholly owned subsidiary housing 
development company. The company had been established in April 
2018 to deliver high quality housing and generate a sustainable 
revenue stream for the Council. The Council was the sole shareholder 
and Cabinet Members on the Shareholder Committee oversaw 
operations. Key company decisions such as the commencement of 
projects and approval of the annual Business Plan were presented to 
the Shareholder Committee, alongside updates on performance and 
matters arising as necessary. Hillingdon First Ltd employed no staff 
directly and operated by buying in relevant support services as 
required – mainly from the Council. 

 
The Committee was informed that the first project undertaken by 
Hillingdon First Ltd was underway – the construction for open market 
sale of 31 flats on the site adjacent to South Ruislip Library on Victoria 
Road, The project was nearing completion and a pre-tax profit of circa 
£1m was expected. A second smaller development consisting of five 
houses at St Helen’s Close, Cowley had been worked up within the 
business plan and a design and build contractor was currently being 
appointed. The scheme would launch by spring 2022. Surplus 
Council-owned sites previously used for Council services were 
currently being used for development, though 3rd party land was not 
being purchased. The Committee was advised that, to date, Hillingdon 
First Ltd had remained focused on safe in-borough residential 
development schemes as there was a lower level of risk. The Council 
was not materially reliant on this business to deliver core services. In 

P
age 78



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

future, affordable housing would be delivered on larger developments 
and it was anticipated that the Council would have first refusal on 
affordable units. It was confirmed that Hillingdon First Ltd was not 
averse to the idea of developing units for rental which could offer a 
longer-term investment. 

 
Safety of Council-Owned Properties and Buildings 

 
A confidential update on the Safety of Council-Owned Properties and 
Buildings was provided to the Committee detailing the safety and 
security measures in place in the Council’s 120 corporate buildings. 

 
Performance Monitoring and Data 

 
The Committee received a report on the tracking of performance and 
provision of insight data in the Council, examples of the data provided 
and how data were used to shape operational delivery and the 
strategic development of services. 

 
Members heard that the Council routinely gathered a range of data 
across all directorates. The purpose of this data collection was to 
ensure services were being delivered efficiently to meet residents’ 
needs. There was also a requirement to plan for the future 
development of services. The Council had at its disposal a variety of 
mechanisms to gather, process and analyse the data using 
spreadsheets, bespoke databases and data mining software. 

 
The Committee was advised that a census would be completed on 21 
March 2021 - this would provide a fresh data set and would 
demonstrate how things had changed since 2011. Greater London 
Authority data also provided a useful and more up-to-date insight into 
the demographic profile of the Borough. 

Climate Change Action Plan 
 
The Council’s draft Climate Change Action Plan was presented as part 
of the wider public consultation exercise. Members were invited to 
comment prior to it going back to Cabinet in July 2021. The plan aimed 
to inspire residents to reduce their omissions and supported objectives 
such as air quality, fuel poverty and preventing flooding. 

 
Members heard that the Council aimed to be carbon neutral by 2030. 
It planned to achieve clean energy via the use of wind turbines, solar 
energy and energy supplied by the local and national grid. The use of 
fossil fuel would be reduced in the future. The aim would be to 
purchase green energy when possible and, if not achievable, to 
consider carbon offsetting. The Council had committed to the first 
climate change strategy and had introduced several activities to 
reduce its carbon footprint including the installation of lower energy 
LED street lighting, more efficient boilers and the purchase of green 
energy. It was anticipated that the residual figure to offset carbon 
would be reduced significantly over the next 5-8 years and, if the 
Council continued to purchase green energy, would be relatively low 
by 2030. Approximately 50 hybrid / electric vehicles had been 
purchased in 2020 and more would be purchased in 2021. 

 
It was confirmed that the draft plan would be subject to a public 
consultation period – an online survey would be released on 29 March 
2021 and webinars were planned together with direct emailing to 
interested parties. It was hoped that residents would be engaged and 
involved in shaping the plan. 

 
Prevent 

 
An update on current activity in relation to delivering the Council’s 
responsibilities under the Prevent Duty was received. Members heard 
that the Council had a responsibility to work towards the aims of its 

P
age 79



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Prevent Duty and safeguard those being drawn to extremism. Channel 
was the multi-agency process for the management of cases relating 
to vulnerability to radicalisation and support of terrorism. The local 
authority acted as Chair of the Channel panel and multi-agency 
meetings were held on a regular basis to identify and offer positive 
support to those at risk. 

 
Training for staff and partner agencies was key and it was confirmed 
that the Council had delivered training to more than 5000 staff across 
the Borough from within the Council, education, health, voluntary and 
other settings. 

 
The Council worked with local partners to better understand the 
picture in relation to radicalisation which was constantly changing. An 
understanding of the online space and how it was being used to 
spread extremist material and messaging was of vital importance. 
Workshops had been delivered in schools with pupils discussing 
topics relating to promoting equality and diversity, challenging 
discrimination and tackling hate. A training package and Prevent 
training day would also be organised for Elected Members. 

Past Review Update: Homophobic, Biphobic & 
Transphobic Bullying Review 

 
The Committee received an update on the recommendations 
approved by Cabinet in June 2019. Members were informed that 
progress was being made in respect of all the recommendations 
though some of the actions had been delayed due to the Covid-19 
pandemic. Schools had generally embraced the recommended action 
points and progress would be monitored going forward. Schools were 
being encouraged to join the “Stonewall Champions Programme”. A 
fuller update would be provided at a later future date. 

P
age 80



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

‘Public health, autism and wellbeing’ 
 
 

   The work of the Social Care, Housing & Public Health Policy Overview Committee  
 

Our remit 
 

The Social Care, Housing & Public Health Policy Overview Committee 
is responsible for undertaking the policy overview role in relation to the 
Council’s Adult Social Care, Social Care Services for Children, Young 
People and Children with Special Needs, Adoption and Fostering, 
Homelessness and Housing Needs, Asylum Seekers and Public 
Health responsibilities. 

 

 
 
 
 
Councillors: 

 
Philip Corthorne (Chairman) (from 14 January 2021) 
Ian Edwards (Chairman) (to 14 January 2021) 
Heena Makwana (Vice-Chairman) 
Judith Cooper 
Alan Deville 
Becky Haggar 
Paula Rodrigues 
Steve Tuckwell 
Tony Eginton (Opposition Lead) 
Janet Gardner 

 
Lead Officer: Steve Clarke, Democratic Services 

In addition to monitoring performance, considering the Budget and 
receiving several overview reports on Social Care, Housing and Public 
Health matters, the Committee continued its in-depth review into 
making the Council’s public facing services more autism friendly. 

 
The Committee has seen changes in chairmanship over the last 
municipal year, with Councillor Philip Corthorne taking the position 
most recently in January 2021. The previous chairman during the year 
was Councillor Ian Edwards, now Leader of the Council. 

 

 CHAMPIONING: Corporate Parenting - Children First  
 
Corporate Parenting is a significant responsibility for the Committee, 
and for all our Elected Members who are all ‘Corporate Parents’. 
Therefore, all Members have a duty to safeguard the best interests of 
our Looked After Children (LAC) and Care Leavers. 

P
age 81



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

The Corporate Parenting Panel, established by the Committee in 
March 2019, provides for greater integration of Corporate Parenting 
within the Council’s governance arrangements. The Panel is 
scheduled to meet six times per year; however, the COVID-19 
pandemic has limited the 2020/21 municipal year to four meetings, 
which took place virtually. 

 
The purpose of the Corporate Parenting Panel is to champion 
Corporate Parenting across the Council by directly engaging with our 
Looked After Children and Care Leavers, and directly involving them 
in the democratic and decision-making process, working alongside 
them to monitor services and improve outcomes. 

 
The Panel has reviewed a wide range of topics over the last year, 
including annual reports from Independent Reviewing Officers; the 
LAC Health Team; the Virtual School; and the Fostering and Adoption 
Service. The Panel has heard presentations from young people in 
relation to needs, services and feedback from the Care Leavers 
Conference; the Kids in Care Awards (KICA) 2020; and a summary 
‘Quiz of the Year’. These have been well received by the Panel as 
they have enabled direct engagement with young people, who have 
also co-chaired Panel meetings. The Committee Chairman and 
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care attended the most recent 
Panel meeting, keeping them up to date on the work of the Panel. The 
Panel’s work programme has been tailored to include thematic topics, 
such as Safeguarding, and Health & Education. An overarching theme 
of the last year has been the COVID-19 pandemic, and the ways this 
has impacted on service delivery, and on young people themselves. 

 
The Corporate Parenting Panel is chaired by Councillor Nick Denys 
and includes Councillor Tony Eginton and Councillor Heena 
Makwana. The Panel includes young people, service officers, 
fostering, nursing and virtual school representatives. 

 
 REVIEWED: Making the Council more Autism-friendly   

 
Towards the end of 2019, the Committee commenced its review on 
what opportunities may exist to create a more autism-friendly service 
experience for residents. The aim of the review was to consider how 
the Council could improve its public facing services to support 
residents with autism and to make practical, feasible and supportive 
recommendations to promote inclusion when accessing our universal 
services. The review was put on hold during the pandemic and 
continued from September 2020. 

 

 
The Committee decided to take a more hands on approach to the 
review and were keen to meet with different organisations and 
departments that all contribute to the Council’s services in relation to 
autism. The Committee welcomed a wide range of invited 
representatives from groups such as Hillingdon Autistic Care and 
Support and Hillingdon Parent Carer Forum. In addition to scrutinising 

P
age 82



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

the Council’s own departments and heads of service, Members 
conducted site visits to Eastcote and Uxbridge libraries to see the 
services available to residents with autism and met with 
representatives from the Centre for ADHD and Autism Support. 

 
It is of the utmost importance that the Council, and its public services, 
remain accessible and approachable for all residents. By adopting a 
variety of scrutiny techniques, the Committee offered a set of 
supportive recommendations to Cabinet. The Committee noted 
opportunities for the Council to improve in terms of ease of access to 
services generally and creating a more autism friendly experience but 
were pleased to note progress, including the appointment of 
Advanced Social Work Practitioners with a focus on Autism, and on 
officer training and development. 

 
The findings and recommendations arising from the review were 
approved by Cabinet on 22 April 2021 to be taken forward. 

 
 REVIEWING: Assisted Living Technologies  

 
At the meeting on 13 April 2021, the Committee agreed to pursue a 
major review into Assisted Living Technologies. Hillingdon currently 
has a variety of Assistive Living Technologies in place which enables 
residents to remain within their own home or a supported setting and 
retain their independence. The technology used is aimed at supporting 
residents in daily life and providing peace of mind for them, their 
families and carers. 

 
The Committee’s decision to conduct a review into Assistive Living 
Technologies was made even more pertinent against a backdrop of 
the Covid-19 pandemic due to its focus on a proportion of the 
Borough’s most vulnerable residents. The review will formally 
commence at the beginning of the 2021/22 municipal year. 

 

 

Covid-19 
 
Prior to the 2020/21 municipal year, the Committee received an 
important update from the Council’s Director of Public Health 
regarding coronavirus and the latest position and advice from Public 
Health England at the time. The nationwide lockdown led to a hiatus 
in the Committee’s activity from March through to September 2020. 
Against the ever-changing backdrop of the Covid-19 pandemic, the 
Committee embraced new and adaptive means of scrutiny as 
meetings moved online. 
In October 2020 the Committee received a report on the Covid-19 
Local Outbreak Control Plan. The plan set out how the Council is 
working with residents, businesses and partner organisations to 
prevent and control the spread of the Covid-19 virus in what was, and 
still is, a very fast- moving national environment. 

 
Carers’ Strategy 

 
The Committee received an update on the implementation of the 
2018/21 Carers Strategy and the detailed action plan. Members 
welcomed this opportunity to ask officers questions on the local 
services provided, including areas working well and challenges. The 
Committee resolved that reporting on the delivery of the strategy 
should be annual and precede the annual progress report to Cabinet. 

MONITORING: public health and the wellbeing of 
vulnerable residents 

P
age 83



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Universal Credit - a previous review 
 
The Committee received an update on the position regarding 
Universal Credit in Hillingdon following the review in 2019 which 
covered the impacts, risks and local partnership response. Members 
used this opportunity to see what changes had been made since the 
reviews and noted that recommendations had been implemented. 

 
Safeguarding and Mental Health Services 

 
Each year, the Committee receives the Hillingdon Local Safeguarding 
Children Board Annual Report and Safeguarding Adult Board Annual 
Report providing comments on them to the Cabinet. These reports 
provided detail on the work undertaken by each Board and evidence 
about the standard to which the agencies responsible for safeguarding 
children and adults had performed. The Committee reviewed the 
reports, questioned officers about performance and submitted useful 
comments to the Cabinet. 
Semi Independent Living 

 
The Committee received an overview of semi-independent living 
arrangements for young people aged 16 – 25 years commissioned by 
the London Borough of Hillingdon’s Children and Young People’s 
Social Care service. The Committee was able to question officers and 
was pleased to hear about the Young Inspectors programme and its 
proactive approach. 

 
Voids Management 

 
Housing related topics have been a significant area of activity for the 
Committee. The Committee were provided with an understanding of 
the void property management process, the contributions made by 
various service teams, the interfaces in the ‘end to end process’ and 

performance associated with this core landlord function. The 
Committee commended officers on their work and highlighted the 
need to make the most of the Council’s housing stock and the 
importance of this work area. 

 
Update on the Council’s Housing Stock and Zero 
Carbon Commitment 

 
A presentation was delivered to Members with a focus on housing 
energy and the activities being undertaken to reduce carbon 
emissions within the Council’s housing stock. In January 2020, the 
London Borough of Hillingdon declared a climate emergency which 
led to the impending development of a Climate Action Strategy issued 
for consultation by Cabinet in March 2021. Members were given an 
overview of fuel poverty in London, it was highlighted that Hillingdon 
had lower fuel poverty levels than all neighbouring boroughs and from 
2010 to 2018, the proportion of fuel poor households had decreased 
from 11.2% to 10.1%. 

 
Online Housing Benefits Applications 

 
Members received an update on the Housing Benefits and Council 
Tax Reduction online application processes and services. As was a 
common theme throughout the year, the Committee were also 
updated with matters in relation to the effect of the Covid-19 pandemic 
on service delivery and capacity. 

 
Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleeping 

 
An update on the Council’s Homelessness Prevention and Rough 
Sleeping Strategy 2019/24 was received warmly by the Committee. 
The Council’s current five-year strategy went live in 2019 and was 
primarily based on six priority workstreams. Individually, the 

P
age 84



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

workstreams highlighted key areas of up-stream homelessness 
prevention, access to affordable housing options and the importance 
of partnership working. The six priority areas showed the Council’s 
intention to lead change and support the Borough’s most vulnerable 
residents. 

 
The Covid-19 pandemic had emphasised the importance of having an 
accessible and responsive service for residents. In response to the 
Government’s ‘Everyone In’ scheme, over 250 rough sleepers had 
come through the Council’s service since April 2020 and a highly 
successful new rough sleeper hostel was opened within an extremely 
tight timeframe in March 2020. It was highlighted that, in the 
Government’s annual rough sleeper report, published in February 
2021, Hillingdon was highlighted as the Borough with the largest drop 
in rough sleepers in England over the past year. 

 
Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals 

 
As a statutory consultee to the Cabinet’s 2021/22 budget proposals, 
published in December 2020, the Committee reviewed the proposals 
within its remit and submitted comments to the Corporate Services, 
Commerce and Communities Policy Overview Committee. During the 

year, the Committee also received an update on the 2020/21 budget 
planning report. 

 
Annual Complaints Update 2019/20 

 
The Committee received a comprehensive report on Resident 
Complaints and Enquiries within its remit, noting the trends and 
providing appropriate feedback to officers. 

P
age 85



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

REVIEWING: Hillingdon’s Adult and Community 
Learning Service 

‘Adult learning, schools and local environment’ 
 
 

 The work of the Residents, Education & Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee  
 
 
 

Councillors: 
 

Wayne Bridges (Chairman) 
John Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 
Allan Kauffman 
Alan Chapman 
Devi Radia 
Paula Rodrigues 
Colleen Sullivan 
Jan Sweeting (Opposition Lead) 
Stuart Mathers 

 
Tony Little (Co-opted Education 
representative) 

 
Lead Officer: Neil Fraser, Democratic Services 

 
 

Our remit 

This Committee is responsible for the policy overview role for a diverse 
range of Council services central to residents’ quality of life. Our remit 
extends to education, highways, transport, footpaths, green spaces, 
planning, heritage, waste and recycling, sport and leisure, 
environmental health, and beyond. The Committee has undertaken a 
major review this year into Hillingdon’s Adult and Community Learning 
Service. It has also monitored several critical service areas. 

 
 

 
During 2020/21, the Committee has undertaken a review of 
Hillingdon’s Adult and Community Learning Service. 

 
The Hillingdon Adult and Community Learning (HACL) service 
provides courses for adults in Hillingdon, externally funded by the 
Education and Skills Funding Service (ESFA) and the GLA following 
the delegation of funds to the London Mayor from August 2019. 
Historically, approximately 3000 learners have taken courses a year, 
resulting in approximately 5000 enrolments, the vast majority of whom 
are Hillingdon residents. 

 
While courses aim to be as accessible as possible to residents, the 
current pandemic and periodic lockdowns have meant that some 
residents have been unable to attend classes in person. The move to 
virtual meetings using remote meeting technology has also proved 
difficult for some learners, through a combination of lack of IT skills or 
lack of availability of the requisite IT equipment at home. 

 
The Committee has been cognizant of the unique circumstances of 
the pandemic, and so the review has explored additional opportunities 
to assess the current service offering and ensure the courses provided 

P
age 86



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

MONITORING: education & key environmental 
services 

 

are responsive to newly identified or emerging requirements in a post- 
Covid world, including increased working arrangements with other 
Council departments and external partners and other local authorities. 

 
The review has also considered the recommendations resulting from 
Ofsted’s inspection in December 2019 and the actions being taken to 
address these concerns. In addition, the Committee has obtained 
feedback from learners and service providers, to ensure the service 
offering is agile and responsive to changing learner needs. 

 
The Committee’s review remains a work in progress, and the final 
report, with recommendations, will be submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration in the coming months. 

 
 
 REVIEWED: Littering and Fly-Tipping in Hillingdon       

 
 

The Committee approved the final report into its review of littering and 
fly-tipping within Hillingdon, which was submitted for endorsement at 
the Cabinet meeting held on 22 October 2020. Cabinet endorsed all 
recommendations, which included actions to promote waste services 
to landlords, tenants, volunteers and young people, increased 
programmes of roadside beautification, strengthened relationships 
with partners such as Keep Britain Tidy, hard hitting communications 
campaigns (including details of fines and prosecutions for offenders), 
and how the Council can embrace national changes resulting from the 
2020 Environment Bill. 

 
 

 
 
School Places 

 
The Committee receives quarterly updates on the provision of school 
places to pupils. This enables Members to also review headline pupil 
projections at both primary and secondary levels, aligned with the 
Council’s School Expansion Programme. Members noted that, in 
previous years, the Council had successfully offered every child a 
school place and understood that work was underway regarding 
places for September 2021. 

 
Educational attainment of our young people 

 
An annual report is presented each year to Members detailing trends 
in the academic standards of pupils within the Borough. The 
Committee noted the efforts of schools and officers for continuing to 
support learning and well-being through what has been a challenging 
time. However, Members did note that challenges remained, 

P
age 87



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

particularly around school performance, and the Committee asked 
that Hillingdon looks at best practice delivered by other councils, some 
of whom have higher levels of deprivation, so that Hillingdon’s position 
compared to other London boroughs and statistical neighbours can be 
improved. The Committee’s views were presented to Cabinet when it 
considered the final report. 

 
Changes to the Elective Home Education Policy 

 
The Committee gave its feedback on a report detailing proposed 
changes to the Council’s Elective Home Education Policy, to update 
the policy in line with the Department for Education’s latest guidance 
and to better support parents within Hillingdon. 
Proposed changes included revisions to the layout of the policy, 
information on dedicated social care involvement and support, and the 
introduction of a flowchart detailing procedure. The proposed changes 
had been submitted for consultation with stakeholders but at the time 
of the report, no responses had been received. 

 
Members noted that there had been a 43% increase in the number of 
children being home educated within the Borough, likely due to 
parents choosing to keep children at home rather then send them to 
school during the pandemic. 

 
Members made several suggestions for further revisions to the policy, 
including: 

 
• Ensuring that language used within the policy was gender 

neutral and easy to understand, 
• Provide for alternative ways parents can discuss their choice to 

home educate their child without involving the school’s head 
teacher, 

• Contact signposting, particularly within the introduction, 
• Links to relevant background information for parents. 

These suggestions were considered and taken on board by Cabinet 
in the final policy approved. 

 
Schools Admissions Criteria 

 
The Committee received a report detailing proposed minor changes 
to the school admissions criteria, comprising: 

 
a.) the removal of nodal point criteria for Deanesfield Primary 

School; 
b.) a higher priority for children of staff working at a school versus 

children living nearby; 
c.) a change of the terms detailing medical or psychological 

conditions, from ‘psychological’ to ‘social’, to enable 
consistency with terms set out in the School Admission Code 
2014; and 

d.) a reduction in the Planned Admissions Number (PAN) for 
Ruislip Gardens Primary School. 

 
It was confirmed that, if approved, the proposed amendments would 
be implemented in September 2022. Of the three responses to the 
consultation received so far, all were in favour of the proposed 
changes, bar one who was opposed the change to staff 
children/distance criteria. 

 
Community Infrastructure Levy Reporting 

 
The Committee received a report detailing the Council's Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), a charge which allowed the Council to raise 
funds from developers undertaking new building projects, and which 
supported the financing of infrastructure costs across the Borough. 

 
In line with regulatory requirements, a detailed annual report on CIL 
total income and expenditure is required to be published on the 

P
age 88



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

Council’s website by 31 December each year, in respect of the 
previous financial year. 

 
CIL monies were confirmed to be distinct from S106 monies, in that 
they were not site specific and could be used for wider improvements 
across the Borough. The neighbourhood proportion of CIL spend 
(minimum 15%) were spent through the Council’s Chrysalis 
programme, driven by requests from residents and/or Ward 
Councillors. 

 
Detail of the projects CIL supported were set out within the report. 

 
Statement of Licensing Policy Consultation 

The Committee received a report detailing proposed changes to the 
Statement of Licensing Policy. The Council is required to update its 
policy every 5 years, with the current policy due for updating in 2021. 
As part of this review, the Licensing Team consulted the Committee 
on the new draft policy before its consideration by Cabinet and 
adoption by full Council. Proposed changes are designed to provide 
clarity and consistency, and include updates to partnership working, 
immigration, modern day slavery, mobile internet sales, promotion of 
equality, and more. 

 
Enforcement of Parking Management Schemes 

 
The Committee received a report detailing the enforcement of parking 
management schemes within Hillingdon, which included detail on the 
decriminalisation of parking enforcement in London in 1994 and the 
powers granted to local authorities to enforce parking, granted by the 
Road Traffic Act 1991. 

The Committee was apprised of the process by which offenders re 
ticketed, as well as the appeals process open to residents and 
motorists. 

 
Parking outside schools was highlighted as a particular concern, and 
the Committee was advised that the Council operated automated 
cameras deployed at all schools with school zig zags. Parking Civil 
Enforcement Officers are visiting schools on a rota basis, with patrols 
increased at certain schools where there are reported issues. 

 
CCTV was confirmed to be used to monitor parking offences, with 131 
total cameras used to monitor areas such as bus lanes, bus stop and 
banned turns. 

 
Flooding 

 
The Committee welcomed a report detailing the Council’s roles and 
responsibilities as a Lead Local Flood Authority, its required actions 
during a major flood event, and lessons learned from recent flood 
events. 

 
Members made a number of suggestions for officers to consider, 
including new processes for notifying Ward Councillors of flood 
events, increased collaboration with Councillor’s when drafting the 
service’s annual report, and how Ward Councillors could notify officers 
of problem areas at imminent risk of flooding. 

 
Planning for Canals and Towpaths 

 
The Committee received an update on the planning policies governing 
canals and towpaths. 

P
age 89



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

It was highlighted that the matter was topical, as canals and towpaths 
had become popular recreational spots during the Covid-19 
pandemic. Planning officers had worked closely with the Canal and 
River Trust charity, who were very active in the protection of the 
waterways and were often engaged with as part of planning 
consultations. The boundary threshold for applications to make 
financial contributions for the canal improvement was 150m from the 
canal edge, though the Council was receiving contributions from 
developments that were beyond this threshold, but whose 
development would impact the area. Examples were highlighted within 
the report. Local polices and polices set out within the new London 
Plan encouraged the use of waterways, e.g. transportation of building 
materials by boat, to help reduce pollution and address climate 
change. 

 
Tree Planting within Hillingdon 

 
The Committee was updated on Tree Planting within the Borough. 
Members were advised that while there was no set target for planting, 
the service attempted to plant on a 1:1 basis at a minimum. It was 
confirmed that Hillingdon had planted 6,250 trees over the preceding 
12 months and had removed 215. 

 
Regarding planting on highways, they were recognised as hostile 
environments for trees to grow, and the service was therefore looking 
at alternate sites for planting. However, highways would continue to 
be looked at as potential locations, particularly if deemed suitable for 
trees to act as traffic calming measures. The Committee noted the 
Borough’s award of Tree Cities of the World status and highlighted 
this as a considerable achievement. 

Update on previous reviews: Air Quality 
 
The Committee regularly monitors the implementation of 
recommendations resulting from past reviews. On the review into Air 
Quality commissioned in 2017/18, the Committee received a report 
detailing the Council’s actions to address Air Quality following the 
previous review. The report detailed how the Committee’s 
recommendations had been built into the Council’s Air Quality Action 
Plan, as well as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
Recent information received from the GLA had shown that before 
Covid-19, air quality was improving, thanks to the instigation of ultra- 
low emission zones, though during the periodic lockdowns air quality 
had been seen to have improved dramatically. For example, of the 
455 schools within London located within defined polluted areas in 
2019, only 14 were now in such areas. The Committee was advised 
that a new Climate Action Officer had been employed to review and 
deliver strategies relating to pollution and air quality. 

 
Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals 

 
As a statutory consultee to the Cabinet’s 2021/22 budget proposals 
published in December, the Committee reviewed the proposals within 
its remit and submitted comments to the Corporate Services, 
Commerce and Communities Policy Overview Committee. During the 
year, the Committee also received an update on the 2020/21 budget. 

 
Annual Complaints Update 2019/20 

 
The Committee received a comprehensive report on Resident 
Complaints and Enquiries within its remit, noting the trends and 
providing appropriate feedback to officers. 

P
age 90



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

‘decision-making scrutiny’ 

  The work of the Executive Scrutiny Committee  
 
 
 

Scrutiny of decision-making 

A period of 5 working days must elapse before any formal executive 
decision taken by the Cabinet or Cabinet Member can be implemented 
by officers. The Executive Scrutiny Committee’s primary role is, 
therefore, to scrutinise such decisions that have been taken but have 
not yet been implemented. This acts as the statutory ‘checks & 
balances’ upon the executive. 

 

 
 

Councillors: 

Keith Burrows (Chairman) (from 14 January 2021) 
Henry Higgins (Chairman) (to 14 January 2021) 
John Riley (Vice-Chairman to 14 January 2021) 
Wayne Bridges (Vice-Chairman from 14 January 2021) 
Simon Arnold 
Philip Corthorne (Member from 14 January 2021) 
Nick Denys 
Peter Curling (Opposition Lead) 
Peter Money 
Kerri Prince 

Mr Anthony Little - Roman Catholic Diocesan representative (on education 
matters) 

Lead Officer: Mark Braddock, Democratic Services 

This action is widely known as the ‘call-in’ power. If the Executive 
Scrutiny Committee considers any of such decisions to be deficient, 
they may refer the decision back to the Cabinet or Cabinet Member(s) 
for further consideration. The Committee may make use of a set of 
criteria to guide them in this process. For Cabinet decisions, the 
Committee meets immediately after the conclusion of meetings of the 
Cabinet to enable Members to review the decisions just taken and, if 
agreed by a majority of Members present, give consideration to the 
potential for the call-in of a particular decision made. 

 
During 2020/21, there were no valid call-ins of any Cabinet, 
Cabinet Member decisions or other key executive decisions. 

 
The Chairman of the Executive Scrutiny Committee has a key 
constitutional prerogative of being able to decide to waive the ‘call-in’ 
power where a decision is deemed urgent by the Cabinet or Cabinet 
Member and any delay would prejudice the Council’s or the public’s 

P
age 91



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

interest or could lead to an [increased] risk of damage to people or 
property, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. Such 
decisions are carefully considered and when approved by the 
Chairman, this enables on an exceptional basis for such decisions to 
be implemented with immediate effect so the Council can be 
responsive, primarily to safeguard residents’ best interests. These are 
otherwise known as ‘urgency’ or ‘special urgency’ decisions through 
the formal executive decision-making process depending on the 
necessity of the matter in question. 

 
During 2020/21, both chairmen have carefully considered and agreed 
to the waiver of the call-in power for a small number of decisions. Such 

actions, which are taken on an exceptional basis, have ensured the 
Council can deliver critical services and works to safeguard residents. 

 
The Chairman also plays a constitutional role in being notified of any 
future key decisions, primarily to the Cabinet, where it has been 
impracticable to give sufficient notice of a decision in the Forward Plan 
and provides the necessary permissions for these to be considered. 

 
To assist in their wider deliberations, the Committee often request 
clarification on several matters within individual Cabinet reports, 
which are responded to by officers either at or after the meeting. 

P
age 92



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

‘NHS accountability, Safer Hillingdon Partnership, Crossrail, 
Hillingdon Hospital Redevelopment, Mount Vernon Cancer 
Centre, Post Office services’ 

 
 

  The work of the External Services Select Committee  
 

Lead Officer: Nikki O’Halloran, Democratic Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillors: 
 
Nick Denys (Chairman) (from 14 January 2021 and Vice-Chairman 
to 14 January 2021) 
John Riley (Chairman) (to 14 January 2021) 
Devi Radia (Vice Chairman: from 14 January 2021-20) 
Simon Arnold 
Ray Graham (14 January 2021-20 May 2021) 
Vanessa Hurhangee 
Stuart Mathers (Opposition Lead) 
Ali Milani 
June Nelson 

The External Services Select Committee has a broad remit to 
scrutinise all non-Hillingdon Council organisations whose actions 
affect Hillingdon residents. This means monitoring those bodies 
outside the Council that provide public services to Hillingdon 
residents. The Committee scrutinises the performance of these 
bodies and undertakes in-depth reviews and witness sessions on 
topics that most effect the lives of Hillingdon residents. The 
Committee also undertakes the health scrutiny role as required by the 
Health & Social Care Act 2001 and acts as the Crime and Disorder 
Committee as defined in the Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. 

 
Although the formal meetings of the Committee were cancelled in 
June and July 2020 due to the pandemic, Members were regularly 
provided with information about any ongoing developments and 
projects. When meetings returned virtually in September 2021, 
Members were able to resume their formal scrutiny of external 
agencies. The Committee would like to thank all those who engaged 

P
age 93



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

during this difficult time. Even though COVID created a lot of extra 
pressures on those being scrutinised, it was pleasing that the external 
agencies still wanted to participate in our investigations, seeing the 
value of using the Committee to be transparent with and accountable 
to our local community. 

 
The Committee held witness sessions on the following topics during 
the last year: 

 
Hillingdon Hospital Trust Regulatory Performance: The road to 
improvement 

 
The CQC inspected Hillingdon Hospital in August 2020 (and returned 
in September 2020) in response to concerns around infection, 
prevention and control at the hospital. The CQC rated Hillingdon 
Hospital overall as 'Inadequate’. This came on top of CQC inspections 
in 2015 and 2018 that both concluded that the Trust was 
underperforming and required improvement. This repeated failure in 
regulatory assessments concerned the Committee, which questioned 
the Trust as to why the failures kept on happening and what the path 
to better performance of the Trust is. 

 
Following the inspection, THH is required to respond to areas of 
concern that have been identified, develop an action plan to address 
them and make improvements. The CQC will then follow up on any 
action it tells the Trust to take which may be by contacting the Trust or 
visiting the service to carry out a focused inspection. The Committee 
would welcome feedback from the CQC on the Trust’s plans for 
improved performance, as we want to see regulatory approval for the 
direction the Trust is moving in. 

 
The Committee held an evidence session with the newly appointed 
Chief Executive of the Trust to discuss why the Trust kept on failing 
regulatory tests and what strategic and practical plans were in place 

to improve performance. We recognise that the Trust is a large and 
complex organisation, so it may be unrealistic to expect to gain an 
adequate rating if the Trust were inspected again during the next year. 
Instead our challenge to the leadership of the Trust is to evidence to 
us during the next year how better regulatory results will be achieved 
soon. 

 

 
Policing in Hillingdon: Safer Partnership Performance 

 
As part of our powers under the Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Regulations 2009, the Committee held an evidence session 
with the local police leadership to discuss safety in Hillingdon. The 
last twelve months have been an unusual time with regard to crime 
and anti-social behaviour (ASB) with reductions in most categories of 
crime. There has been an 11% decrease in the number of notifiable 
offences and a considerable reduction in the number of robberies and 
burglaries. Although there has been a reduction in violent offences 
overall, there have been increases in some areas. ASB cases have 
included a large number of COVID-related instances. Reports of 
domestic abuse have increased slightly on the previous year which 
was thought to be as a result of COVID. 

P
age 94



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

The Committee raised concerns that the creation of the West Area 
BCU (covering Ealing, Hounslow and Hillingdon) would result in fewer 
police officers in Hillingdon. The police assured us that this was not 
the case, though given the nature of the shared arrangements, it was 
not possible to specify numbers for each borough. This is an area the 
Committee will continue to monitor over the next year. 

 
An area that interests the Committee is how communities have been 
engaged in creating safer neighbourhoods. The police currently 
operate a model that flows communication from Neighbourhood 
Watch Schemes to Ward Panels, ending up at the bi-monthly 
meetings of the Safer Neighbourhood Board. The Committee 
suggested that this system be reviewed, to get a better understanding 
as to how effective it is at utilising local people to create safer 
neighbourhoods. There have been good levels of public subscription 
to the OWL service. It is thought that there are about 1,800 across 
the Borough. There has been some concern in the previous year 
about the availability to support the services but the Committee was 
pleased to hear that MOPAC has now agreed to fund the initiative 
going forward. The Committee felt that the OWL service could be 
better used to disseminate crime prevention messages and to 
circulate other relevant safety messages. Over the next year, the 
Committee will be seeking evidence as to what action is being taken 
to improve the use of local communities in preventing crime. 

 
The repeated changes in legislation around COVID and the 
announcement of these changes before the legislation had actually 
been written had caused some challenges. That said, most residents 
had been compliant with the restrictions. Issues with non-compliance 
had been no greater in Hillingdon than anywhere else which had not 
been reflected in the higher than average infection rate in the Borough. 
There had been an issue with unlicensed music events (UMEs) over 
the summer which might have contributed towards this. Where people 
had been caught for non-compliance, the police approach had tended 

to be to engage and explain rather than enforce. That said, a number 
of fines had been issued. 

 
Hillingdon Hospital Redevelopment: delivering modern health 
care for residents 

 
The current Hillingdon Hospital is an old building with parts of the 
estate built in the 1930s as emergency wartime accommodation. 
Some of the older wards have become unsafe and have been closed 
to protect patients and staff. 81% of the hospital building will require 
major repair or replacement soon. This is the impetus that is pushing 
for a full redevelopment of Hillingdon Hospital to happen as soon as 
is possible. 

 
At a national level, investment in new hospitals is run by the New 
Hospital Programme team (“the team”), jointly based at the 
Department of Health and Social Care and NHS England. This year, 
the team has allocated Hillingdon Hospital one of eight available 
places in the New Hospital Programme. A team at the Hillingdon 
Hospital Trust is working to deliver a rebuilt hospital that will provide 
the same range of services that are currently available at the hospital, 
but in a high quality, 21st century state of the art building. In designing 
this, the Trust will continue to work with system partners to improve 
the integration of care across Hillingdon. 

 
The Committee held an evidence session with the team at the Trust 
in charge of securing, designing and delivering the new hospital 
building. Members learnt that the redevelopment of the Hospital is not 
just about getting a better building. A new Clinical Services Strategy 
will link existing health and care workstreams in the hospital and 
increasingly within the framework of Hillingdon Health and Care 
Partners. The plan is for the strategy to lead to a more joined up health 
and social care system within the Borough so that more high quality 
and safe care will be provided outside of a hospital setting, whilst 

P
age 95



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

improving the quality of emergency and elective hospital care for those 
who need it. Proactive, preventative care will be delivered by the 
Hillingdon neighbourhood teams: embedding population health 
information to support proactive management of physical and mental 
health and wellbeing, reducing variation in outcomes and access. 

 
The next stage will be to publicly consult on the plans for the new 
redevelopment. The Committee is supportive of the redevelopment 
process so far. During the next year, the Committee will assess the 
more detailed plans and give its view as to whether they meet the 
demands of our local population, and that the new building will be 
environmentally sustainable and future-proofed against changing 
ways of delivering health care. 

 
Mount Vernon Cancer Centre Review: Improving cancer care for 
our residents 

 
The NHS in the East of England and in North London is working 
together to review the services at Mount Vernon Cancer Centre 
(MVCC). MVCC is run by East and North Hertfordshire NHS Trust 
and delivered from Mount Vernon Hospital which is managed by The 
Hillingdon Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (THH). It is a standalone 
cancer centre and primarily serves a population of over 2 million 
people in Hertfordshire, South Bedfordshire, North West London and 
Berkshire. The patient pathways involve a large number of other 
hospitals and arrangements with several other NHS trusts. 

 
The review team have recommended the full relocation of the Mount 
Vernon Cancer Centre to the Watford Hospital site, with enhanced 
local access to services where possible. The main reasons for moving 
from the Mount Vernon site were: 

1. Many of the buildings are not in a good state of repair, and 
concerns have been raised in relation to the long-term clinical 
sustainability of the Cancer Centre. 

2. Limited support facilities on site (for example intensive care and 
access to medical input from non-cancer specialties). 

3. Some newer treatments and research trials have high levels of 
toxicity. Without services such as high dependency or 
intensive care, patients will not have access to the latest 
treatments. 

4. Haematological malignancy cannot be treated at MVCC. 
5. As people live longer, more people with cancer are also living 

with other illnesses or conditions which require treatment 
alongside their cancer treatment. This cannot be done at 
MVCC. 

 
The Watford Hospital would be able to provide all the different levels 
of care that are needed to fulfil the modern way which cancer can be 
treated. It is also relatively central for the geographical area it serves, 
only being a 10-minute drive away from the Mount Vernon site. 
Hillingdon residents would be offered a choice between Watford and 
Hammersmith Hospital for their main cancer treatment, allowing them 
to pick the location most convenient for them. 

 
Following feedback, some areas have been identified where patients 
would benefit from certain services provided closer to home. For 
example: 

1. Enhanced networked chemotherapy services, including having 
such a facility at Hillingdon Hospital. 

2. Consideration of mobile options 
3. Exploration of opportunities for homecare and other innovation. 
4. Opportunities for improvements to local access for blood tests 

and other simple interventions. 
 
The Committee is supportive of the proposals to improve the cancer 
services that our residents receive, though Members wish to have 
more details as to how the change in where services are delivered 
from will affect people’s access to help. MVCC will be publishing more 

P
age 96



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

detailed plans during the next municipal year for consultation, as soon 
as they have confirmed the funding arrangements so they are 
confident as to what can be delivered. 

 
Quality Matters: State of Local Health Services 

 
Each year, there is a statutory requirement for all providers of NHS 
healthcare services to produce a Quality Account: an annual report to 
the public about the quality of services delivered and submitted to the 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care by 30 June each year. 
As well as Hillingdon Hospital Trust and the Mount Vernon Cancer 
Centre the Committee scrutinises the work of the North West London 
CCG, Central and North West London NHS Foundation Trust, Royal 
Brompton and Harefield NHS Foundation Trust and London 
Ambulance Service. Providers are asked to consider three aspects of 
quality – patient experience, safety and clinical effectiveness - and 
have a legal duty to send their Quality Account to the overview and 
scrutiny committee (OSC) in the local authority area in which the 
provider has a registered office. 

 
Hillingdon’s External Services Select Committee reviews these 
reports annually and provides a statement indicating whether 
Members believe that the report is a fair reflection of the healthcare 
services provided. This statement is then included verbatim in the 
final published version of the report. The deadline for Trusts to submit 
their 2019/2020 Quality Account reports was extended to allow for the 
impact of the pandemic on the priorities of health services. 

 
Post Offices: Part of the heart of our communities 

 
The Committee held an evidence session on the role of post offices in 
providing services to local communities. Post offices had been 
deemed to be an essential service during the pandemic and, in the 
most recent period of lockdown, 99% of post offices had remained 

open for business. However, a small number had been affected by the 
pandemic resulting in temporary closures and reduced hours, 
potentially at short notice following staff shortages. Trade levels had 
been mixed with some post offices seeing an increase in transactions 
as more people had been sending parcels and mail, especially over 
the Christmas period when they had been unable to visit in person. 
However, income from travel insurance and foreign currency had not 
been good following COVID-related restrictions on travel. 

 
In the last year, Post Office Limited (PO) had been supporting its post 
masters to ensure that they were able to provide essential services to 
the community. They provided them with PPE and perspex screens 
and had set up a hardship fund. They had also provided them with 
posters to remind customers to wear face coverings, keep 2m apart 
and regularly wash their hands. Post masters in Hillingdon had 
worked hard to ensure the continued provision of post office services 
in the Borough and they had done a good job. 26 post offices had 
remained open across Hillingdon, although some of them may have 
been disrupted by the need for actions such as deep cleans. 

 
The Committee is concerned that post office services are still not 
available in the Heathrow Villages area. Over the last twelve months, 
the focus of the PO has been on providing support for existing post 
offices and guaranteeing remuneration for post masters. As there is 
currently no funding available for new post offices, the PO is exploring 
the development of a lower cost model for the future. The Committee 
has asked for an update on the viability of providing a post office in 
the Heathrow Villages area and to be kept informed of any 
developments around post office provision in the Borough. 

P
age 97



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

The upgrade of Hayes & Harlington and West Drayton stations: 
Stations fit for Crossrail 

 
The Committee held an evidence session with Great Western Rail 
(GWR) to discuss the frustration in relation to the works being slower 
than anticipated at Hayes & Harlington and West Drayton stations. 
GWR reported that, despite the pandemic, progress was being made 
at these two stations and the structure at Hayes & Harlington was now 
starting to take shape and was on track for completion in the early 
autumn of 2021. Lift shafts and footbridges had been installed and, 
although it had taken a while, progress had been made. GWR 
reported that the redeveloped West Drayton station was now starting 
to take shape: the footbridges had been installed and the cladding 
would be undertaken shortly. Although it had taken a while, National 
Rail continues to work closely with MTREL (who have responsibility 
for Crossrail) and the work is expected to be completed by the autumn 
of 2021. 

 
The Committee wanted to know about what action was being taken to 
ensure that the stations were safe places. It was reported that MTREL 
worked jointly with British Transport Police to keep passengers safe 
and met on a weekly basis in joint taskforce meetings. Travel Safe 
Officers and Land Sheriffs have been appointed to work with partners 
and the i-Safety application was available to all staff on their tablets to 
enable them to easily report low level crimes. The Land Sheriffs had 
been a joint initiative which had helped to reduce crime at West 
Drayton station by 45% and by 64% at Hayes & Harlington station. 
Whilst it was recognised that some of this improvement would be as a 
result of the pandemic, a proportion would also be as a result of local 
improvements to the way of working. 

 
The Committee requested that GWR and MTREL prioritised 
communications with local groups and took on-board their feedback 
as the stations were redeveloped. 

P
age 98



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

‘involving residents and the community’ 
 
 

  Stakeholder and witness engagement is central to overview and scrutiny in Hillingdon  
 
Councillors on Policy Overview, Scrutiny and Select Committees actively seek to involve residents, interest groups, experts, private and public 
organisations in the policy reviews and scrutiny activity their respective Committees undertake. Strong witness testimony has provided, and 
continues to provide, added verifiable value to the Committee's findings presented ultimately to the Cabinet for approval. 2020/21 was no exception, 
with the following external witnesses engaging in this important aspect of Hillingdon's democratic process: 

 
 
 

• Central and North West London NHS 
Foundation Trust 

• Hayes Town Business Forum 
• Hayes Town Partnership 
• Healthwatch Hillingdon 
• Hillingdon Clinical Commissioning 

Group 
• Hillingdon Health and Care Partners 
• Hillingdon Local Medical Committee 
• London Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
• Metropolitan Police Service (West 

Area Basic Command Unit) 

• MTR Elizabeth Line 
• Network Rail 
• NHS England / NHS Improvement 
• North West London Integrated Care 

System 
• Post Office Limited 
• Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS 

Foundation Trust 
• The Hillingdon Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust 
• West London Cancer Alliance 
• Hillingdon Parent Carer Forum 

• Hillingdon Autistic Care and Support 
• Adult Learners 
• London Borough of Ealing - Adult 

Education Service Manager 
• London Borough of Hammersmith and 

Fulham - Adult Education Service 
Manager 

• Hillingdon Foodbank 
• UB7 Foodbank 
• Hillingdon Mind 
• Age UK, Hillingdon, Harrow & Brent 
• Carers Trust Hillingdon 

 
 

P
age 99



 Annual Council – 20 May 2021  

 

P
age 100


	Agenda
	8 Report of the Head of Democratic Services
	9 Committee Allocations and Membership 2021/2022
	Money (Lead) 
	Radia (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	Prince (Lead) 
	Makwana (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	Farley (Lead) 
	Chapman (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	Sweeting (Lead) 
	Barnes (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	Eginton (Lead) 
	Hurhangee (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	MAJOR APPLICATION PLANNING COMMITTEE: 7 (5-2)
	Duncan (Lead) 
	Higgins (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	Morse (Lead) 
	Morgan (Proposed Vice-Chairman)

	(ALL PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ALL THAT HAVE RECEIVED APPROPRIATE PLANNING TRAINING TO BE SUBSTITUTES FOR BOTH COMMITTEES)
	Edwards (Proposed Chairman)
	Denys
	Substitutes
	Substitutes

	REGISTRATION & APPEALS COMMITTEE: 7 (4-3)
	Denys (Proposed Vice-Chairman) 
	AUDIT COMMITTEE: 4 (3-1)
	Graham
	Substitutes

	Edwards
	Substitutes

	INVESTIGATING AND DISCIPLINARY SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1)
	Edwards
	Substitutes

	APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1)
	GRIEVANCE SUB-COMMITTEE (SENIOR OFFICER): 4 (3-1)

	10 Policy Overview and Scrutiny Committees' Annual Report
	‘Voluntary Sector Response to Covid-19, Anti-Social Behaviour in Lockdown and Climate Change’
	The work of the Corporate Services, Commerce & Communities Policy Overview Committee
	Our remit
	Richard Mills (Chairman)
	MONITORING activity  Annual Complaints Update 2019/20
	Update on review into ‘Recruitment in Hillingdon’
	Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals
	Alley Gating
	Anti-Social Behaviour in Lockdown
	Past Review Update: Local Policing Review
	Hillingdon First Limited
	Safety of Council-Owned Properties and Buildings
	Performance Monitoring and Data
	Climate Change Action Plan
	Prevent
	Past Review Update: Homophobic, Biphobic & Transphobic Bullying Review


	‘Public health, autism and wellbeing’
	The work of the Social Care, Housing & Public Health Policy Overview Committee
	Our remit
	Councillors:

	CHAMPIONING: Corporate Parenting - Children First
	REVIEWED: Making the Council more Autism-friendly
	REVIEWING: Assisted Living Technologies
	Covid-19
	Carers’ Strategy
	Universal Credit - a previous review
	Safeguarding and Mental Health Services
	Semi Independent Living
	Voids Management
	Update on the Council’s Housing Stock and Zero Carbon Commitment
	Online Housing Benefits Applications
	Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleeping
	Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals
	Annual Complaints Update 2019/20


	‘Adult learning, schools and local environment’
	The work of the Residents, Education & Environmental Services Policy Overview Committee
	Our remit
	REVIEWED: Littering and Fly-Tipping in Hillingdon
	School Places
	Educational attainment of our young people
	Changes to the Elective Home Education Policy
	Schools Admissions Criteria
	Community Infrastructure Levy Reporting
	Statement of Licensing Policy Consultation
	Enforcement of Parking Management Schemes
	Flooding
	Planning for Canals and Towpaths
	Tree Planting within Hillingdon
	Update on previous reviews: Air Quality
	Budget Review and Cabinet’s Budget Proposals
	Annual Complaints Update 2019/20


	‘decision-making scrutiny’
	Scrutiny of decision-making
	Councillors:
	During 2020/21, there were no valid call-ins of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member decisions or other key executive decisions.


	‘NHS accountability, Safer Hillingdon Partnership, Crossrail, Hillingdon Hospital Redevelopment, Mount Vernon Cancer Centre, Post Office services’
	The work of the External Services Select Committee
	Councillors:
	Hillingdon Hospital Trust Regulatory Performance: The road to improvement
	Policing in Hillingdon: Safer Partnership Performance
	Hillingdon Hospital Redevelopment: delivering modern health care for residents
	Mount Vernon Cancer Centre Review: Improving cancer care for our residents
	Quality Matters: State of Local Health Services
	Post Offices: Part of the heart of our communities
	The upgrade of Hayes & Harlington and West Drayton stations: Stations fit for Crossrail


	‘involving residents and the community’
	Stakeholder and witness engagement is central to overview and scrutiny in Hillingdon



